
 

   

 

 

 

 



 

This Budget Report has been prepared with reference to the Local Government Better Practice Guide: 
Model Budget 2021ς22, issued to Victorian councils by Local Government Victoria. 
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During the height of the coronavirus pandemic, some suggested that governments would have to 
choose between prudent financial management and supporting communities most exposed to the 
crisis. I am pleased to report that the Borough of Queenscliffe has shown it is possible to do both, 
with our 2021ς22 budget maintaining a debt-free balance sheet while allocating $1.3 million for 
various new operating and capital projects. 

With $309,000 of stimulus funding set aside by Council in the previous budget, businesses and 
residents have continued to benefit from waivers on permit fees, direct rebates on waste charges 
and a more comprehensive hardship support package. While the recovery from the pandemic has 
allowed Council to reduce its spending on financial support ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳƛƴƎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ȅŜŀǊΣ ǿŜΩǊŜ 
continuing to offer support to anyone struggling to meet their rate obligations. Council staff are only 
a phone call away, and are always available to provide assistance. 

Despite its challenges, the past year has also contained lessons, notably about the importance and 
value of our public spaces. With outdoor gatherings one of the safest ways to catch up during the 
pandemic, our beaches and parks are busier than ever. This budget responds to this increasing use 
with an investment in facilities for our parks and open spaces, including $360,000 in design and 
renewal works for toilets and change facilities throughout the Borough. The $60,000 allocated to 
scope and design works for the Royal Park Oval upgrade will also ensure our well-used sporting 
facilities are ready for play over the long term, while $20,000 will support the development of a bike 
park concept design based on community feedback.  

Looking to the long-term, the changing climate is an increasing focus for local governments all over 
Australia, particularly following last year's bushfires and the recent floods in New South Wales. As 
Council comes close to completing the development of its Climate Emergency Response Plan, this 
budget allocates $150,000 to invest in the first tranche of initiatives outlined in the plan including a 
$70,000 allocation for two Electrical Vehicle (EV) charging stations. This funding not only 
demonstrates our commitment to seriously responding to the climate crisis, but our commitment to 
following through on plans we develop alongside the community. I am looking forward to working 
with local residents and community groups to implement these initiatives over the coming year. 

It's also important that Council takes the opportunity to reflect on how we're performing, and ensure 
we're delivering the best possible service for residents and ratepayers. This year's budget includes 
investments in some of our own operations ς investments which help us better serve our 
community. This budget includes funding for a restructure of Council's operations, a revamp of the 
ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƴƎ ƳƻŘŜƭ ƻŦ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ǘƻǳǊƛǎǘ ǇŀǊƪǎΣ ŀ ǊŜǾƛŜǿ ƻŦ ƻǳǊ ƭƻŎŀƭ ƭŀǿ ǇǊƻƎǊŀƳ ŀǊŜŀΣ ŀƴŘ ŀ ƳƻŘŜǊƴ L¢ 
system for Council, all while maintaining the same level of financial support for our popular aged care 
service. Taken together, these investments will set Council on a path to greater efficiency and 
modernisation over the long-term. 

I want to conclude by commending the outstanding work of Council's officers in preparing this 
budget. Their excellent management and quick thinking has not only allowed us to deliver extensive 
financial support to residents following the worst global economic crisis in nearly a century, but has 
presented a financially sustainable budget only one year later. Our Council, and our ability to support 
our community, is financially sustainable thanks to their skill and capability. 

I am delighted to be able to recommend this budget to the community on behalf of Council. 

 

Cr Ross Ebbels 
Mayor  



 

  

A new Council and the ongoing economic recovery from the coronavirus pandemic finds the Borough 
of Queenscliffe well-placed to take a long-term view in its 2021ς22 budget. 

This budget is underpinned by a return to normal revenue and expenditure, resulting in a breakeven 
ōǳŘƎŜǘΦ ²ƘƛƭŜ ŜǾŜǊȅ ōǳŘƎŜǘ Ŏƻƴǘŀƛƴǎ ŎƘŀƴƎŜǎ ȅŜŀǊ ƻƴ ȅŜŀǊΣ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǘǳǊƴ ƻŦ ǾƛǎƛǘƻǊǎ ǘƻ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ŎŀǊŀǾŀƴ 
parks, and ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ ŀƴŘ ŀŘƳƛƴƛǎǘǊŀǘƛǾŜ ǎŀǾƛƴƎǎ ŀǊŜ ǘƘŜ ǘǿƻ Ƴŀƛƴ ŦŀŎǘƻǊǎ ŘǊƛǾƛƴƎ ǘƘƛǎ ōǳŘƎŜǘΩǎ 
return to a stronger financial position. Responding dynamically to opportunities and challenges 
throughout the year has allowed Council to provide financial support to those most affected by the 
financial impacts of COVID without increasing spending. This continues the commitment to the 
model of financial prudence set out in the Council Plan. 

Councils can only respond to challenges like those we saw last year when their internal operations 
are at their most effective. With a view to modernising and improving our service delivery 
capabilities, this budget allocates $366,000 over the coming financial year to restructuring and 
ƛƳǇǊƻǾƛƴƎ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎΦ bŜǿ L¢ ǎȅǎǘŜƳǎ ǿƛƭƭ ōǊƛƴƎ ƻǳǊ ǊŜŎƻǊŘǎ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ŀƴŘ ǿƻǊƪŦƭƻǿ 
practices up to expected industry standards, while staff restructures and program area reviews will 
ŜƴǎǳǊŜ ǎǘŀŦŦ ƘƻǳǊǎ ŀǊŜ ǎǇŜƴǘ ǿƘŜǊŜ ǘƘŜȅΩǊŜ Ƴƻǎǘ ƴŜŜŘŜŘΦ ¢ƘŜ ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇƳŜƴǘ ƻŦ ŀ ƴŜǿ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭ tƭŀƴ 
and Community Vision also represents an opportune moment to better align our management 
practices with community priorities, and I look forward to sharing further news on how these 
investments will serve our community as this transformation progresses. 

The pandemic has also demonstrated the importance of diverse and strong revenue sources in 
ǎŜŎǳǊƛƴƎ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǇƻǎƛǘƛƻƴΦ bƻǘŀōƭȅΣ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ caravan parks are an important source of 
revenue that allows Council to bring visitors to our community and raise funds that we can reinvest 
for the benefit of local residents. Sharp falls in visitation to our caravan parks during the pandemic 
were a key cƻƴǘǊƛōǳǘƻǊ ǘƻ ƭŀǎǘ ȅŜŀǊΩǎ ŘŜŦƛŎƛǘΣ ǿƘƛƭŜ ŀ ǊŜǘǳǊƴ ƛƴ ǘƻǳǊƛǎǘ ƴǳƳōŜǊǎ ŀƛŘŜŘ ǎƛƎƴƛŦƛŎŀƴǘƭȅ ƛƴ 
ŀŎƘƛŜǾƛƴƎ ǘƘƛǎ ȅŜŀǊΩǎ ǳƴŘŜǊƭȅƛƴƎ ǎǳǊǇƭǳǎΦ hǾŜǊ ǘƘŜ ƭƻƴƎ-term, effective operation of these parks will 
ǊŜƳŀƛƴ ŀ ŎƻǊƴŜǊǎǘƻƴŜ ƻŦ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎŜǎΣ ǎƻ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭ ƛǎ ƛƴǾŜsting $100,000 in the coming year to 
implement operational improvements to our tourist parks. These improvements are anticipated to 
generate revenues above their cost over the long-term, improving their offering and providing 
valuable revenues for our community.  

On a sector-wide basis, the Borough of Queenscliffe continues to perform well compared to other 
small rural shires in Victoria. Over the short to medium-ǘŜǊƳΣ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ Ǉƻǎƛǘƛƻƴ ǊŜƳŀƛƴǎ 
strong, and the balance of income and expenditure in ǘƘƛǎ ōǳŘƎŜǘ Ƙŀǎ ƛƳǇǊƻǾŜŘ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ŀƭƛƎƴƳŜƴǘ 
with the long-term financial objectives outlined in the Council Plan. Long-term challenges remain, 
ƘƻǿŜǾŜǊΦ bƻǘŀōƭȅΣ ǘƘŜ ±ƛŎǘƻǊƛŀƴ DƻǾŜǊƴƳŜƴǘΩǎ ƭƛƳƛǘŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ŎƻǳƴŎƛƭ ǊŜǾŜƴǳŜǎ ǘƘǊƻǳƎƘ ǊŀǘŜ ŎŀǇǇƛƴƎ 
while continuing to devolve responsibilities to local government is placing increasing financial 
pressure on councils. The implementation of new policies and regulations in line with the Local 
Government Act 2020 is occupying a significant amount of staff time, and a disproportionately large 
ŀƳƻǳƴǘ ƻŦ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ǊŜǎƻǳǊŎŜǎ ǿƘŜƴ ŎƻƳǇŀǊŜŘ ǿƛǘƘ ƭŀrger regional and metropolitan councils. The 
Borough of Queenscliffe will continue to advocate alongside other rural councils for a more dynamic 
approach to local government regulation that recognises the unique challenges and opportunities of 
small rural councils and gives them the autonomy to deliver most effectively for their communities. 

 

Martin Gill 
Chief Executive Officer  



 

  

Council Plan 

Council has prepared a Budget for the 2021ς22 financial year that is aligned to the vision in the current 
Council Plan. This vision focuses on the following five key strategic objectives: 

1. Enhance community wellbeing by providing a safe environment where people are involved, 
healthy and active in recreation, arts and culture; 

2. Play our part in protecting the local, national and globally significant values within our natural 
environment for future generations; 

3. Foster a diverse and vibrant local economy; 

4. Preserve and enhance the Borough as a special place through excellence of design and 
conservation of its rich culture and unique heritage; and 

5. Maintain a cohesive, well governed, financially sustainable and independent Borough. 

2021ς22 Budget  

The budget details the resources required over the next year to fund the large range of services Council 
provide to the community. It also includes details of capital expenditure allocations to improve and 
renew /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ physical infrastructure, buildings and operational assets as well as funding proposals 
for a range of operating projects. 

The current economic environment instigated by the spread of COVID-19 globally is still highly volatile, 
which makes it difficult for local governments to formulate an accurate financial budget for 2021ς22. 
The budget is prepared on several assumptions about the economic conditions and how they will affect 
the operation of the Borough. These assumptions will be refined and adjusted in quarterly forecast 
reviews when they emerge. 

Operating Income 

The decrease in operating income for 2021ς22 is mainly due to an $825,000 net gain on the sale of 
assets (mainly the sale of Murray Road land) included in the forecast for 2020ς21. Without the impact 
of assets sale, there is a net increase of $237,000 in operating income for 2021ς22. 
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Rates and Charges 
The budget includes a rate increase of 1.5 ǇŜǊŎŜƴǘΦ ¢Ƙƛǎ ƛǎ ƛƴ ƭƛƴŜ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ {ǘŀǘŜ DƻǾŜǊƴƳŜƴǘΩǎ ǊŀǘŜ 
capping framework which has capped rate increases by Victorian councils. The additional income 
estimated due to the rate increase is $100,000 (annualised basis). Total rates income for 2021ς22 is 
$6,772,000. 
 
Waste management charges are estimated to increase by $177,000 in 2021ς22 to $1,153,000 against 
the understated waste management charges for 2020ς21 due to the one-off rebate offered to a total 
of $130,000. If there had not been a rebate offered in 2020ς21, the increase in waste management 
charges for 2021ς22 would have been only $47,000 (approximately $16.30 increase per property). 
  
User Fees 
¢ƘŜ ŦŜŜǎ ŦǊƻƳ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ¢ourist Parks contribute the largest portion of the user fees budget, with a 
total budget in 2021ς22 of $1,724,000, an increase of $175,000 mainly due to the projected recovery 
of tourism activities and occupancy levels of tourist parks back to pre-COVID levels.  
 
Operating Grant 
Total operating grant income of $1,148,000 is estimated for 2021ς22, a decrease of $336,000 mainly 
due to the non-recurrent operating grant received in 2020ς21 under the various State Government 
COVID support initiatives. 
 

 

Operating Expenses 

Council has been initiating various projects to achieve operational efficiencies that contribute to 
/ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ƭƻƴƎ-term financial sustainability. The increase in total operating expenses for 2021ς22 is 
largely driven by the increase in employee cost.  

Excluding non-recurrent operating projects, waste management expenses (linked to waste 
management charges under the full cost recovery strategy), and depreciation, there is a $322,000 
increase in recurrent operating expenses for 2021ς22 mainly due to the increase in employee cost 
(staff restructures and operational improvements to tourist parks management model, additional 3.2 
FTE of which 1.6 FTE under 2 year contract) and estimated incremental operational expense of the 
Queenscliffe Hub. 
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New Initiatives and New Operating Cost Commitments 

The total value of new operating initiatives and new operating cost commitments included in the 
budget is $490,000. 

¶ $100,000 incremental cost of new staff resources under the new organisational structure (ongoing 
1.6 FTE, 2-year contract 0.6 FTE); 

¶ $100,000 incremental cost of new operating model tourist parks (including new 1 FTE, 2-year 
contract); 

¶ $80,0000, short term actions to be implemented based on the Climate Emergency Response Plan 
(CERP); 

o $40,000, development of an active transport strategy for the Borough; 

o $30,000, CERP implementation plan; and 

o $10,000, development of a reconciliation plan (First Nations people). 
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¶ $50,000, development of a new 10-year asset management plan as required under Section 92 of 
the new Local Government Act 2020; 

¶ $45,000, incremental operating expenses due to the improvement proposed to the Information 
and Communications Technology (ICT) of the Borough, a new corporate system, Office 365 and 
enhanced ICT security; 

¶ $20,000, conduct a traffic study, vehicle movement, volume and speed within Queenscliff road 
network; 

¶ $20,000, develop a vegetation management policy for the Borough; 

¶ $15,000, local law program area service review to determine responsibilities and opportunities for 
reporting and process improvements; and  

¶ $60,000, incremental operational expenses of the new Queenscliffe Hub.  

 

The increase in annual recurrent expenses for the foreseeable future as a result of the above initiatives 
(including new operating cost commitments) is estimated to be approximately $170,000. However, 
Council firmly believes that these investments will bring greater efficiency and additional income from 
tourist parks over the short to medium term those and will be factored into the future budgets. 
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Underlying Operating Result 

An indicator of the sustainable operating result required to enable Council to continue to provide core 
services and meet its objectives, the underlying result, is calculated by adjusting the operating 
surplus/(deficit) for the year by deducting non-recurrent capital funding (circa operating income minus 
operating expenses including depreciation).  
 
However, in most instances, the reported underlying result is impacted by the timing of operating 
grants and non-recurrent operating projects included in the budget of a particular year. As a result, the 
underlying result is more meaningful when it is assessed over the medium to long term rather than 
the underlying result of a particular year. 
 
The reported underlying result for the year is a deficit of $837,000. After adjusting for the timing of 
operating grants and non-recurrent operating projects, a $47,000 underlying surplus is projected for 
2021ς22. 
 
However, the adjusted average annual underlying deficit projected for the next three years is 
$113,000. This average deficit can directly be attributable to the loss of income from boat ramp parking 
fees, as Council had been receiving an average annual income of $115,000 from boat ramp parking 
fees before the State Government decided to abolish the boat ramp parking fee. 
 
Further, there may be some opportunities for the Council to achieve operational efficiencies and 
additional ongoing income as a result of the new initiatives/projects included in the 2021ς22 budget 
(new operating model to manage tourist parks, new corporate system, new organisational structure, 
etc.). However, detailed cost efficiencies and additional income figures are not possible to estimate 
until project plans and operational requirements are further developed. 
 
The long term outlook for Council, in achieving sustainable underlying operating surpluses into the 
future, involves a set of priorities for Council which includes continuing to advocate the State 
government concerning the loss of boat ramp fees and to identifying further opportunities to increase 
income and reduce operating expenditure (invest-to-save). 
 

Capital Expenditure 

Council is also committed to the continued investment in its property, plant and equipment and 
infrastructure assets, both in terms of maintaining, renewing and upgrading its existing assets as well 
as creating new assets which will assist in the achievement of service delivery to the community.  
 
Council will deliver $5.2 million of capital works in 2021ς22 including capital projects carried forward 
from 2020ς21 totalling to $3.6 million. This capital work budget also includes /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ŎƻƳƳƛǘƳŜƴǘ 
of $693,000 to asset renewal funding based on asset management plans of Council. 
 
In the 2021ς22 budget, Council has allocated $1.2 million of the total operating income for capital 
work and a further $1.9 million has been transferred from carry forward reserves. Council is to receive 
$2.1 million capital grants during the year for the budgeted capital work. 
 



 

  

 
 
Carry Forward Capital Projects 

¶ $2,400,000, Queenscliffe Hub; 

¶ $606,000, Queenscliff Sports and Recreation Precinct development; 

¶ $424,000, Point Lonsdale Lighthouse Reserve upgrade;  

¶ $121,000, Hesse Street streetscape improvement work (including an additional $75,000 allocation 
in 2021ς22 budget); 

¶ $52,000, Local Roads and Community Infrastructure program ς upgrade work at the intersection 
of Stokes and Bethune streets (including unsafe sections of shared trail); 

¶ $40,000, Princess Park kiosk toilet upgrade ς design work. 

 

New Capital Projects 

¶ $300,000, Royal Park changing rooms upgrade ς design work based on the tourist park masterplan 
(design the proposed facility and subsequent changes to caravan park layout); 

¶ $156,000, proposed ICT upgrade work, a new corporate system, Office 365, and enhanced ICT 
security (The total cost of the project is $433,000 over 3 years); 

¶ $70,000, two electrical vehicle charging stations; 

¶ $60,000, Royal Park oval upgrade ς scope and design (fencing, irrigation and lighting); 

¶ $50,000, Hesse Street footpath link to Queenscliff Boat Ramp; 

¶ $40,000, Weeroona Parade toilet renewal ς design work based on condition assessment and 
Council's toilet strategy; 

¶ $20,000, Toc H toilet renewal, end of life replacement of asset as per CouncƛƭΩǎ ŎƻƴŘƛǘƛƻƴ 
assessments and toilet strategy. $180,000 in 2022ς23 year; and  

¶ $20,000, concept design for a new bike park. 
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Where $100 of Income is spent by Council 

 

  



 

  

Borrowings 

Council does not have any outstanding loans and no new loans are included in the 2021ς22 budget. 
 
Council continues to focus on efficient and financially responsible service delivery to achieve outcomes 
that are valued by our community. Council will continue to explore new approaches to provide services 
in a tighter fiscal environment.  

Cash and Investments 

Cash and investments are expected to decrease by $2.7 million during the year to $7.2 million as 
Council delivers on project allocations especially capital projects. $5.0 million out of the $7.2 million 
has been allocated for specific future purposes of which $3.5 million represents proceeds from the sale 
of Murray Road land, set aside in a reserve account until a potential project/s is identified in the future 
in line with Council Policy CP044 Sale, Exchange or Transfer of Council Land.  

 

 

Financial Snapshot 

Key Statistics 2020ς21 

Forecast 

$million 

2021ς22 

Budget 

$million 

Total Operating Expenses $12.2 $12.3 

Comprehensive Operating Surplus $4.9 $1.3 

Underlying operating surplus / (deficit) ($0.1) ($0.8) 

Cash result $0.3 $0.0 

   

Capital Works Program $7.3 $5.2 

Funding the Capital Works Program   

Council $1.4 $1.2 

Reserves $1.0 $1.9 

Borrowings $0.0 $0.0 

Grants $4.9 $2.1 

   

Cash and Investments $9.9 $7.2 

$7,841

$9,913

$7,210

$0 $1,500 $3,000 $4,500 $6,000 $7,500 $9,000 $10,500

Actual 2019-20

Forecast 2020-21

Budget 2021-22

Cash and Investments ($'000)



 

  

Financial Snapshot ς cont.   

Budgeted Expenditure by Strategic Objective (excluding depreciation) Budget $million Budget % 

Strategic Objective 1: Community Wellbeing $3.2 29% 

Strategic Objective 2: Environmental Sustainability $1.9 18% 

Strategic Objective 3: Local Economy $1.4 13% 

Strategic Objective 4: Planning and Heritage $1.1 10% 

Strategic Objective 5: Governance and Performance $3.3 30% 

Total $10.9 100% 

 

 

This section sets out the key budget influences arising from the internal and external environment 
within which Council operates. 

External Influences 

The four years represented within the Budget are 2021ς22 through to 2024ς25. In preparing the 2021ς
22 budget, a number of external influences have been taken into consideration. These are outlined 
below:  
 
Location ς The Borough of Queenscliffe is located at the eastern tip of the Bellarine Peninsula and 
opposite Point Nepean at Port Phillip Heads, in Victoria, Australia. It is bordered by water on three 
sides: Port Phillip Bay, Swan Bay and Bass Strait. The only land border is the City of Greater Geelong 
on its west. The Borough is located approximately 105km south-west of Melbourne and 35km east of 
Geelong.  
 
Population Growth ς The Borough of Queenscliffe has a permanent population of around 3,000. This 
grows up to 17,120 in peak holiday times with the influx of non-permanent residents and visitors. Many 
property owners only holiday or live part-time in the Borough. The 55.9% of private dwellings 
unoccupied during the 2016 census is indicative of the large temporary population.  
 
Superannuation ς Council has an ongoing obligation to fund any investment shortfalls in the Defined 
Benefits Scheme which historically was used by Councils across Victoria. The last call on Local 
Government was in the 2012ς13 financial year where Council was required to pay $206,000 to top up 
its share of the Defined Benefits Scheme. The amount and timing of any liability is dependent on the 
global investment market. At present, the actuarial ratios are at a level that additional calls from Local 
Government are not expected in the next 12 months. Further, the Superannuation Guarantee is to be 
increased from 1 July 2021 by 0.5% each year until 1 July 2025 (up to 12%). 
 
Financial Assistance Grants ς The largest source of government funding to Council is through the 
annual Victorian Grants Commission allocation. The overall state allocation is determined by the 
Federal Financial Assistance Grant. 
 
Capital Grant Funding ς Capital grant opportunities arise continually. The budget has been based on 
confirmed grants. Any subsequent grants would be reflected in the quarterly reviews. 
 
Cost shifting ς This occurs where Local Government provides a service to the community on behalf of 
the State and Federal Government. Over time, the funds received by Local Governments does not 
increase in line with real cost increases, such as school crossing or library services, resulting in a further 
reliance on rate revenue to meet service delivery expectations. 



 

  

Government decisions ς Decisions of the State and Federal Governments impact operations of Local 
Governments. For instance, the State Government decision to abolish boat ramp parking fees has 
resulted in a total income loss to ratepayers of $1.25 million over ten years. 
 
Enterprise Agreement (EA) ς The current Borough of Queenscliffe Enterprise Bargaining Agreement 
stipulates a wage increase of 2.0% or a percentage increase of 0.5% less than the official general rate 
cap for the financial year, whichever is the greater. 
 
Rate Capping ς The Victorian State Government continues with a cap on rate increases. The cap for 
2021ς22 has been set at 1.50%. 
 
Supplementary Rates ς Supplementary rates are additional rates received after the budget is adopted 
each year, for the part of the year when a property value increases in value (e.g. due to improvements 
made or change in land class), or new residents become assessable.  
 
Waste Disposal Costs ς The Environment Protection Agency (EPA) regulation has a sustained impact 
on Council with regards to compliance with existing and past landfills sites. Waste disposal costs are 
also impacted by industry changes such as increasing EPA landfill levies and negotiation of contracts 
e.g. recycling sorting and acceptance.  
 
Coronavirus (COVID-19) ς COVID-19 has presented a fast-evolving significant challenge to businesses, 
households, and the economy worldwide. Council has acted in the interest of keeping our community, 
residents and workforce safe. 
 

Internal Influences 

As well as external influences, there are a number of internal influences which are expected to impact 
the 2021ς22 Budget. These include:  
 
Service Planning ς Reviewing services to ensure that they meet the community needs is an ongoing 
process. Balancing the needs of the community within the constraints of the funds available is an 
ongoing challenge for Council. Council needs to have a robust process for service planning and review 
to ensure all services continue to provide value for money and are in line with community expectations. 
 
Own source revenue streams ς Council depends heavily on rates income and income from tourist parks 
in financing its annual budget. Council needs to explore more opportunities to optimise the revenue 
generating capacity of its tourist parks. 
 
New ongoing cost commitments ς New capital projects and some operational decisions result in new 
ongoing cost commitments for Council. Council needs to have a robust process in place to evaluate 
new capital projects and significant operational decisions while considering opportunities for Council 
to achieve operational efficiencies and new income streams as a result of the new capital projects and 
other key operational decisions, to ensure financial sustainability of Council. 
 
Cash ς Council holds cash reserves to fund capital works, cash reserves allocated for specific 
purposes and to meet operational needs. Cash must be managed to ensure that sufficient cash is 
ŀǾŀƛƭŀōƭŜ ǘƻ ƳŜŜǘ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ obligations as and when they come due. 
 

 



 

  

Assumption Notes 
Actual 

Forecast 
Actual 

Draft 
Budget 

Projections Trend 

2019ς20 2020ς21 2021ς22 2022ς23 2023ς24 2024ς25 +/o/ - 
         

Rate Cap Increase 1 2.50% 2.00% 1.50% 1.75% 2.00% 2.00% + 

Population Growth 2 -1.41% 2.31% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% o 

Investment Interest Rate 3 0.65% 0.17% 0.29% 0.57% 0.72% 0.68% + 

CPI 4 1.70% 0.75% 1.50% 1.75% 2.00% 2.00% + 

User Fees 5 -18.12% 5.93% 11.83% 2.40% 2.44% 2.44% o 

Grants - Recurrent 6 6.52% -15.52% -0.57% 1.75% 5.65% 1.93% o 

Grants - Non-Recurrent 7 -70.29% 415% -62% 0% 0% 0% o 

Employee Costs 8 5.55% 2.46% 9.35% 1.69% 1.18% 2.50% - 

Contactors, consultants 
and materials 

 0.21% 22.81% -4.82% 1.75% 2.00% 2.00% + 

Utilities  2.76% 3.28% 11.81% 1.75% 2.00% 2.00% + 

Depreciation 9 12.32% -0.35% 3.52% 2.76% 2.00% 2.00% o 

 

Notes 

1. Rate Cap   
Projections are in line with the projected CPI.   

2. Population Growth   
No significant growth in population is expected. Stagnated rates base.   

3. Investment Interest Rate   
Based on the average cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets balances.   

4. CPI   
Sources: Department of Treasury and Finance.   

5. User Fees   
Projected recovery of tourism activities and occupancy levels of tourist parks back to pre-
COVID levels during 2021ς22   

6. Grants - Recurrent   
Timing of Road to Recovery grant funding.   

7. Grants - Non-Recurrent   
No new grant funding opportunities identified in the projections.   

8. Employee Costs   
2021ς22 to 2024ς25 , EBA minimum salary increases of 2% and super guarantee increase of 
0.5%, adjusted for new positions and termination of temporary employment contracts.   

9. Depreciation   
Incremental depreciation cost of Queenscliffe Hub (2021ς22 and 2022ς23).   

 
  
  
   

 



 

  

This section includes the following financial statements prepared in accordance with the Local 
Government Act 2020 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020. 

 

1. Link to the Council Plan 

2. Services and initiatives and service performance outcome indicators 

3. Financial statements 

4. Notes to the financial statements 

5. Financial performance indicators 

6. Other information 

Figures in the 2021ς22 Budget have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars. Figures in the 
Budget may not equate due to rounding. 



 

This Budget Report has been prepared with reference to the Local Government Better Practice Guide: 
Model Budget 2021ς22, issued to Victorian councils by Local Government Victoria. 

This section describes how the Budget links to the achievement of the Community Vision and Council 
Plan within an overall integrated planning and reporting framework. This framework guides the Council 
in identifying community needs and aspirations over the long term (Community Vision and Financial 
Plan), medium term (Council Plan, Workforce Plan, and Revenue and Rating Plan) and short term 
(Budget) and then holding itself accountable (Annual Report). 

1.1 Legislative planning and accountability framework 

The Budget is a rolling four-year plan that outlines the financial and non-financial resources that 
Council requires to achieve the strategic objectives described in the Council Plan. The diagram below 
depicts the integrated planning and reporting framework that applies to local government in Victoria. 
At each stage of the integrated planning and reporting framework there are opportunities for 
community and stakeholder input. This is important to ensure transparency and accountability to both 
residents and ratepayers. 

 

 
Source: Mark Davies (Financial Professional Solutions) 
 

The timing of each component of the integrated planning and reporting framework is critical to the 
successful achievement of the planned outcomes.  



 

  

1.1.2 Key planning considerations 

Service level planning 

All councils have legislative responsibility for providing a range of services such as animal management, 
local roads, food safety and statutory planning. In addition, councils provide many other services under 
legal arrangements such as libraries and aged care services. For the Borough of Queenscliffe, legislative 
obligations and legal arrangements underpin the majority of services. 

As the needs and expectations of communities can change, councils need to have robust processes for 
service planning and review, to ensure all services continue to provide value for money and are in line 
with community expectations. In doing so, councils should engage with communities to determine 
how to prioritise resources and balance service provision against other responsibilities such as asset 
maintenance and capital works. 

1.2 Our purpose 

Statio Tutissima Nautis 

¢ƘŜ .ƻǊƻǳƎƘ ƻŦ vǳŜŜƴǎŎƭƛŦŦŜ ǿŀǎ ŜǎǘŀōƭƛǎƘŜŘ ƛƴ мусоΦ tǊƻǳŘƭȅ ƛƴŘŜǇŜƴŘŜƴǘΣ ǿŜ ŀǊŜ !ǳǎǘǊŀƭƛŀΩǎ ƻƴƭȅ 
Borough and the only council in Victoria whose boundary predates the restructure of local government 
in the mid-мффлǎΦ ²Ƙƛƭǎǘ ƛǘǎ ǎƳŀƭƭ ǎƛȊŜ ǇǊŜǎŜƴǘǎ ǎƻƳŜ ƻŦ vǳŜŜƴǎŎƭƛŦŦŜΩǎ ƪŜȅ ŎƘŀƭƭŜƴƎŜǎΣ ƛǘ ŀƭǎƻ ǊŜƳŀƛƴǎ 
its greatest strength and positions the Borough well as a place to pilot new ideas and innovate in many 
fields. 

Overlooking the treacherous Rip at the entrance to Port Phillip, the iconic lighthouses at Queenscliff 
and Point Lonsdale reflect the essencŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ .ƻǊƻǳƎƘΩǎ [ŀǘƛƴ Ƴƻǘǘƻ ς Statio Tutissima Nautis ς 
ǘǊŀƴǎƭŀǘŜŘ ŀǎ ΨǘƘŜ ǎŀŦŜǎǘ ŀƴŎƘƻǊŀƎŜ ŦƻǊ ǎŜŀŦŀǊŜǊǎΩ. 

¢ƘŜ ΨǎŀŦŜǎǘ ŀƴŎƘƻǊŀƎŜΩ ǘƘŜƳŜ ƛƴǎǇƛǊŜǎ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ǾƛǎƛƻƴΣ ƛƴ ǘƘŀǘ Ƨǳǎǘ ŀǎ ƛǘ ƛǎ ŀ ǎŀŦŜ ƘŀǾŜƴ ŦƻǊ ƳŀǊƛƴŜǊǎΣ 
the Borough has an enduring role to play in conserving our extraordinary natural beauty with ecological 
values of global significance, rich architectural heritagŜ ŀƴŘ ƳƛƭƛǘŀǊȅ ƘƛǎǘƻǊȅ ŦǳƴŘŀƳŜƴǘŀƭ ǘƻ !ǳǎǘǊŀƭƛŀΩǎ 
defence. Respectful custodianship maintains Queenscliffe as a special, restorative place for an involved 
and caring community and the many visitors we welcome. 

Our Vision 

The Borough remains a safe haven defined by its unique heritage, rich culture and significant natural 
environment. It is a special and restorative place for an involved and caring community and our visitors. 

Our Values 

The following values will be embraced by Councillors and staff in our daily interactions and work 
processes to guide our behaviour and help us achieve our vision. 

¶ Leadership 
Χ ǳƴŘŜǊǇƛƴƴŜŘ ōȅ ƛƴǘŜƎǊƛǘȅΣ ǎǘǊŀǘŜƎƛŎ ǘƘƛƴƪƛƴƎ ŀƴŘ ƛƴƴƻǾŀǘƛƻƴΦ 

¶ Balance 
Χ in the way we listen to, engage with and make decisions in the best interests of the whole 
community. 

¶ Professionalism 
Χ by doing things well, always trying to improve and being accountable. 

¶ Collaboration 
Χ demonstrated through working as a team and investing in internal and external relationships. 

¶ Flexibility 
Χ by supporting workplace arrangements that sustain healthy and productive staff.  



 

  

1.3 Strategic objectives 

To ensure the Borough remains a safe haven for the historic, cultural and environmental values that 
make it a special place with high levels of communitȅ ǿŜƭƭōŜƛƴƎΣ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ŘŜŎƛǎƛƻƴ-making and 
priorities will focus on five Strategic Objectives as set out in the Council Plan for the years 2017ς2021. 

Council delivers services and initiatives which are structured under 25 program areas. Each contributes 
to the achievement of one of the five Strategic Objectives. 

The table below lists the five Strategic Objectives as described in the Council Plan and the Portfolio to 
which they relate. 

Strategic Objective Portfolio 

1. Enhance community wellbeing by providing a safe 
environment where people are involved, healthy and active in 
recreation, arts and culture. 

Community Wellbeing 

2. Play our part in protecting the local, national and globally 
significant values within our natural environment for future 
generations. 

Environmental Sustainability 

3. Foster a diverse and vibrant local economy. Local Economy 

4. Preserve and enhance the Borough as a special place through 
excellence of design and conservation of its rich culture and 
unique heritage. 

Planning and Heritage 

5. Maintain a cohesive, well governed, financially sustainable and 
independent Borough. 

Governance and 
Performance 
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This section provides a description of the services and initiatives to be funded in the Budget for the 
2021ς22 year and details how these will contribute to achieving the strategic objectives outlined in 
the Council Plan. It also describes several initiatives and service performance outcome indicators for 
ƪŜȅ ŀǊŜŀǎ ƻŦ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎΦ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭ ƛǎ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜŘ ōȅ ƭŜƎƛǎƭŀǘƛƻƴ ǘƻ ƛŘŜƴǘƛŦȅ ƳŀƧƻǊ ƛƴƛǘƛŀǘƛǾŜǎΣ 
initiatives and service performance outcome indicators in the Budget and report against them in their 
Annual Report to support transparency and accountability. The relationship between these 
accountability requirements in the Council Plan, the Budget and the Annual Report is shown below. 

 

 

Source: Department of Jobs, Precincts and Regions  



 

  

2.1 Strategic Objective 1: Enhance community wellbeing by providing a safe 
environment where people are involved, healthy and active in recreation, arts and 
culture. 

To achieve our objective of enhancing community wellbeing by providing a safe environment where 
people are involved, healthy and active in recreation, arts and culture, we will continue to plan, deliver 
and improve high quality, cost effective, accessible and responsive services. The services, major 
initiatives, initiatives and service performance indicators for each program area are described below. 

Service area Key service objective/s 

 
Income/ 
Expenses 

 
Actual 

2019ς20 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
Budget 

2021ς22  
$'000 $'000 $'000 

Aged Services 

The Aged Services program provides care and 
assistance to older residents and those requiring 
respite so that their homes remain their safe 
haven.  

Inc 715 643 584 

Exp (728) (776) (720) 

Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

(13) (133) (136) 

Recreation, 
Arts, Culture 
and 
Community 

The Recreation, Arts, Culture and Community 
program promotes community wellbeing by 
supporting people and communities to be 
involved, healthy and active.  

Inc 18 0 13 

Exp (162) (136) (149) 

Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

(144) (136) (136) 

Community 
Events 

The Community Events program promotes 
community wellbeing, celebrates the 
significance of the Borough and stimulates the 
local economy through conducting events 
directly or facilitating, supporting and 
administering a range of recreation, arts and 
cultural events planned and implemented by 
community organisations or commercial 
businesses.  

Inc 25 27 7 

Exp (126) (194) (174) 

Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

(101) (168) (167) 

Maternal and 
Child Health 
(MCH) 

The Maternal and Child Health program (MCH) 
plays a key role in supporting and monitoring 
the health and wellbeing of local families with 
children from birth to school age.  

Inc 47 58 58 

Exp (70) (74) (75) 

Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

(23) (16) (17) 

Kindergarten 

Kindergarten assists in supporting the wellbeing 
of pre-school children and providing a safe 
learning environment to enable children to gain 
early life skills and knowledge and assist their 
transition to school.  

Inc 15 35 0 

Exp (1) (39) (1) 

Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

14 (4) (1) 

Environmental 
Health 

The Environmental Health program monitors 
and maintains a safe environment for public 
health and wellbeing.  

Inc 36 25 42 

Exp (95) (178) (190) 

Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

(59) (154) (148) 

Asset 
Management 
and 
Appearance of 
Public Places 

The Asset Management and Appearance of 
Public Places program ensures the safety and 
functionality of public places and infrastructure. 
This program promotes community wellbeing 
and encourages people to be active in public 
settings.  

Inc 95 52 71 

Exp (1,044) (1,175) (1,250) 

Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

(949) (1,122) (1,179) 

Local Laws, 
Safety and 
Amenity 

The Local Laws, Safety and Amenity program 
promotes community wellbeing and safety in 
various settings and through monitoring public 
ōŜƘŀǾƛƻǳǊ ŎƻƴǎƛǎǘŜƴǘ ǿƛǘƘ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ [ƻŎŀƭ [ŀǿǎΦ  

Inc 79 57 69 

Exp (294) (299) (324) 

Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

(215) (242) (255) 



 

  

Service area Key service objective/s 

 
Income/ 
Expenses 

 
Actual 

2019ς20 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
Budget 

2021ς22  
$'000 $'000 $'000 

Street Lighting 
The Street Lighting program assists in the 
provision of a safe environment for motorists, 
pedestrians and cyclists.  

Inc 0 0 0 

Exp (30) (31) (32) 

Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

(30) (31) (32) 

Powerline 
Safety 

The Powerline Safety program assists in the 
provision of a safe environment and protection 
ƻŦ ǘƘŜ .ƻǊƻǳƎƘΩǎ ǎƛƎƴƛŦƛŎŀƴǘ ǾŜƎŜǘŀǘƛƻƴ ŦǊƻƳ ŦƛǊŜ 
by maintaining clear zones around powerlines to 
standards as set by legislation. 

Inc 0 0 0 

Exp (60) (50) (51) 

Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

(60) (50) (51) 

Library 

The Library program promotes community 
wellbeing by encouraging active participation 
and life-long learning opportunities in a safe, 
inclusive setting.  

Inc 0 0 0 

Exp (226) (228) (248) 

Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

(226) (228) (248) 

TOTAL 

Income 
 

1,030 896 843 

Expenditure 
 

(2,836) (3,180) (3,215) 

Surplus/ (deficit) 
 

(1,806) (2,284) (2,372) 

Major Initiatives  

¶ Completion of the new Queenscliffe Hub; 

¶ Completion of Queenscliff Sports and Recreation Precinct development; 

¶ Commencement of Point Lonsdale Lighthouse Reserve upgrade; and 

¶ Commencement of Royal Park changing rooms upgrade (design work). 

Other Initiatives 

¶ Appointment of a municipal public health and wellbeing officer; 

¶ Development of a new 10-year asset management plan as required under Section 92 of the new 
Local Government Act 2020; 

¶ Conduct a traffic study, vehicle movement, volume and speed within Queenscliff road network; 

¶ Develop a vegetation management policy for the Borough;  

¶ Local law program area service review to determine responsibilities and opportunities for 
reporting and process improvements; 

¶ Commencement of Royal Park oval upgrade (scope and design); 

¶ Link Hesse Street to Queenscliff Boat Ramp; 

¶ Commencement of asset renewal work of Weeroona Parade toilet and Toc H toilet;  

¶ Commencement of concept design for a new bike park; 

¶ Continue with Hesse Street streetscape improvement work; 

¶ Continue with Princess Park kiosk toilet upgrade work; and 

¶ Continue with upgrade work at the intersection of Stokes Street and Bethune Street. 



 

  

Service Performance Outcome Indicators 

Service Indicator * 
 

Actual 
2019ς20 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft  
Budget 

2021ς22 
Note 

Maternal and Child 
Health (MCH) 

Participation 64% 65% 100% 1 

Participation (Aboriginal children) 100% 100% 100% 1 

Food safety Health and safety 100% 100% 100% 2 

Roads Satisfaction 66% 66% 66% 3 

Animal management Health and safety 0% 0% 0% 4 

Libraries Participation 37% 36% 36% 5 

Note: 

1. Forecast 2021ς22 is based on the six month progress review, as included in the December 2020 
quarterly financial report to Council. The Budget 2021ς22 target is 100%, as Council obviously seeks 
utilisation of its MCH service, although it is recognised that not every child enrolled in the MCH 
service will necessarily attend at least once in each financial year (e.g. if they are enrolled but then 
later move out of the area). 

2. Forecast 2020ς21 is based on the six month progress review, as included in the December 2020 
quarterly financial report to Council.  

3. Both the Forecast 2020ς21 and the Budget 2021ς22 target is to be at least equal to the last 
/ƻƳƳǳƴƛǘȅ {ŀǘƛǎŦŀŎǘƛƻƴ {ǳǊǾŜȅ ǊŜǎǳƭǘ ŀŎƘƛŜǾŜŘ ōȅ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΣ ƴƻǘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ŎǳǊǊŜƴǘ ȅŜŀǊΩǎ ǎǳǊǾŜȅ ǊŜǎǳƭǘǎ 
are not expected to be provided to Council until June 2021. 

4. Both the Forecast 2020ς21 and the Budget 2021ς22 target is zero as Council aims for animal 
management issues to be resolved before reaching the prosecution stage. 

5. Budget 2021ς22 target ƛǎ ǘƻ ōŜ ŀǘ ƭŜŀǎǘ Ŝǉǳŀƭ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ŎǳǊǊŜƴǘ ȅŜŀǊΩǎ ŦƻǊŜŎŀǎǘ ǊŜǎǳƭǘΦ 

* the table at the end of section 2.5 explains the calculation of Service Performance Outcome Indicators. 

 

2.2 Strategic Objective 2: Play our part in protecting the local, national and globally 
significant values within our natural environment for future generations. 

To achieve our objective of playing our part in protecting the local, national and globally significant 
values within our natural environment for future generations, we will continue to plan, deliver and 
improve high quality, cost effective, accessible and responsive services. The services, major initiatives, 
initiatives and service performance outcome indicators for each program area are described below. 

Service area Key service objective/s 

 
Income/ 
Expenses 

 
Actual 

2019ς20 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
Budget 

2021ς22  
$'000 $'000 $'000 

Environmental 
Sustainability 

The Environmental Sustainability 
program sees the Borough playing its 
part in protecting the natural 
environment for future generations.  

 
Inc 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

Exp (122) (188) (274) 

Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

(122) (188) (274) 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

  

Service area Key service objective/s 

 
Income/ 
Expenses 

 
Actual 

2019ς20 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
Budget 

2021ς22  
$'000 $'000 $'000 

Coastal 
Protection 

The Coastal Protection program seeks 
to preserve and enhance the 
.ƻǊƻǳƎƘΩǎ Ǝƭƻōŀƭƭȅ ǎƛƎƴƛŦƛŎŀƴǘΣ ƘƛƎƘƭȅ-
valued coast as an iconic 
environmental asset for current and 
future generations. 

Inc 273 510 148 

Exp (408) (502) (369) 

Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

(135) 8 (221) 

Waste 
Management 
and Recycling 

The Waste Management and 
Recycling program seeks to promote 
local action in order to protect the 
environment for future generations.  
Note full cost recovery of waste 
management, including recycling, is 
achieved via application of waste 
charges to ratepayers in accordance 
ǿƛǘƘ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ wŀǘƛƴƎ {ǘǊŀǘŜƎȅΦ 

Inc 964 999 1,237 

Exp (1,012) (1,117) (1,271) 

Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

(48) (118) (34) 

TOTAL 

Income 

 
1,237 1,509 1,386 

Expenditure 

 
(1,542) (1,807) (1,914) 

Surplus/ (deficit) 

 
(305) (298) (529) 

 

Major Initiatives  

¶ Commencement of implementation of actions based on the Climate Emergency Response Plan 
(CERP); 

o Develop a detailed CERP implementation plan; 

o Development of an active transport strategy for the Borough; 

o Development of a reconciliation plan (First Nations people); and  

o Commencement of installation of Electrical Vehicle (EV) charging stations. 

¶ Roll out Food Organics and Garden Organics (FOGO) waste service (carry forward from 2020ς21 
budget). 

Service Performance Outcome Indicators 

Service Indicator *  
Actual 

2019ς20 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft  
Budget 

2021ς22 

Note 

Waste collection Waste diversion 47% 55% 56% 1 

Note: 

1. Forecast is based on the six month progress review in the current year and the Budget is based on 
achieving a result better than the current year forecast result with the implementation of FOGO.  

* the table at the end of section 2.5 explains the calculation of Service Performance Outcome Indicators.  



 

  

2.3 Strategic Objective 3: Foster a diverse and vibrant local economy. 

To achieve our objective of fostering a diverse and vibrant local economy, we will continue to plan, 
deliver and improve high quality, cost effective, accessible and responsive services. The services, major 
initiatives, initiatives and service performance outcome indicators for each program area are described 
below. 

Service area Key service objective/s 

 
Income/ 
Expenses 

 
Actual 

2019ς20 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
Budget 

2021ς22  
$'000 $'000 $'000 

Tourist Parks  

The Tourist Parksprogram ensures the 
Borough remains a special place for visitors 
ǿƘƛƭŜ ƛƴŎǊŜŀǎƛƴƎ ǘƻǳǊƛǎƳΩǎ ŎƻƴǘǊƛōǳǘƛƻƴ ǘƻ 
the local economy.  

Inc 1,480 1,549 1,724 

Exp (795) (930) (917) 

Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

685 619 807 

Visitor 
Information 
Centre 

The Visitor Information Centre program 
promotes the Borough as a special place for 
visitors, and supports local tourism and 
related businesses with dissemination of 
information to build a diverse and vibrant 
local economy.  

Inc 82 82 79 

Exp (251) (234) (334) 

Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

(169) (153) (255) 

Tourism and 
Economic 
Development 

The Tourism and Economic Development 
ǇǊƻƎǊŀƳ ǎŜŜƪǎ ǘƻ ōǳƛƭŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ .ƻǊƻǳƎƘΩǎ 
unique heritage, rich culture and significant 
natural environment to strengthen the 
diversity and vibrancy of the local 
economy.  

Inc 20 250 0 

Exp (168) (508) (207) 

Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

(148) (258) (207) 

TOTAL 

Income 
 

1,582 1,880 1,803 

Expenditure 
 

(1,214) (1,672) (1,457) 

Surplus/ (deficit) 
 

368 208 345 

 

Major Initiatives  

¶ Implement significant operational improvements to tourist parks. 

Service Performance Outcome Indicators 

There are no mandatory performance indicators to be reported for foster a diverse and vibrant local 
economy Strategic Objective.  

 

2.4 Strategic Objective 4: Preserve and enhance the Borough as a special place through 
excellence of design and conservation of its rich culture and unique heritage. 

To achieve our objective of preserving and enhancing the Borough as a special place through 
excellence of design and conservation of its rich culture and unique heritage, we will continue to plan, 
deliver and improve high quality, cost effective, accessible and responsive services. The services, major 
initiatives, initiatives and service performance outcome indicators for each program area are described 
below. 

 

 



 

  

Service area Key service objective/s 

 
Income/ 
Expenses 

 
Actual 

2019ς20 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
Budget 

2021ς22  
$'000 $'000 $'000 

Design and 
Project 
Management 

The Design and Project Management 
program seeks to achieve excellence of 
design and delivery of projects which 
enhance the Borough as a special place.  

Inc 0 0 0 

Exp (392) (372) (373) 

Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

(392) (372) (373) 

Land Use 
Planning 

The Land Use Planning program ensures 
that the Borough conserves its unique 
heritage, that the built environment is 
enhanced by design excellence, and 
that local amenity is protected against 
inappropriate land use and 
development.  

Inc 84 90 90 

Exp (325) (353) (636) 

Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

(241) (263) (546) 

Heritage 
Conservation 
Advice 

The Heritage Conservation Advice 
program aims to retain the unique 
heritage and rich culture captured in 
ǘƘŜ .ƻǊƻǳƎƘΩǎ ōǳƛƭǘ ŦƻǊƳΦ 

Inc 0 0 0 

Exp (22) 0 (35) 

Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

(22) 0 (35) 

Building 
Control 

The Building Control program ensures 
that building construction and 
maintenance is such that the 
community remains safe.  

Inc 30 26 24 

Exp (32) (32) (33) 

Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

(2) (7) (9) 

TOTAL 

Income 
 

114 116 114 

Expenditure 
 

(771) (758) (1,078) 

Surplus/ (deficit) 
 

(657) (642) (964) 

 

Major Initiatives  

¶ Complete review of the Queenscliffe Planning Scheme, urban and heritage character controls 
(carry forward from 2020ς21 budget); and 

¶ Complete marine and costal management plan (carry forward from 2020ς21 budget). 

 

Service Performance Outcome Indicators 

Service Indicator * 
 

Actual 
2019ς20 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft  
Budget 

2021ς22 
Note 

Statutory planning Decision making 0% 100% 100% 1 

Note 

1. Forecast 2020ς21 is based on the six month progress review, as included in the December 2020 
quarterly financial report to Council. Budget 2021ς22 target is 100%, as Council seeks to have all 
its planning decisions which are referred to VCAT upheld (i.e. no decisions overturned by VCAT). 

* the table at the end of section 2.5 explains the calculation of Service Performance Outcome Indicators. 

 



 

  

2.5 Strategic Objective 5: Maintain a cohesive, well governed, financially sustainable and 
independent Borough. 

To achieve our objective of maintaining a cohesive, well governed, financially sustainable and 
independent Borough, we will continue to plan, deliver and improve high quality, cost effective, 
accessible and responsive services. The services, major initiatives, initiatives and service performance 
outcome indicators for each program area are described below. 

Service area Description of services provided 

 
Income/ 
Expenses 

 
Actual 

2019ς20 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
Budget 

2021ς22  
$'000 $'000 $'000 

Council 
Governance 

The Council Governance program supports 
the Mayor and Councillors to maintain a 
cohesive Council and a well-governed 
Borough.  

Inc 0 0 0 

Exp (220) (320) (210) 

Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

(220) (320) (210) 

Organisational 
Performance 
and 
Compliance 

The Organisational Performance and 
Compliance program supports the Chief 
Executive Officer and Executive 
Management Team to maintain a 
cohesive, well-managed and highly 
performing organisation.  

Inc 674 92 437 

Exp (1,395) (1,384) (1,248) 

Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

(721) (1,293) (811) 

Community 
Engagement 
and Customer 
Service 

The Community Engagement and 
Customer Service program aims to 
facilitate community involvement in 
decision-making, and to deliver high 
quality customer service.  

Inc 0 0 0 

Exp (558) (631) (640) 

Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

(558) (631) (640) 

Financial and 
Risk 
Management 

The Financial and Risk Management 
program seeks to ensure the ongoing 
independence and financial sustainability 
of the Borough.  

Inc 181 75 97 

Exp (1,036) (1,089) (1,172) 

Surplus/ 
(deficit) 

(855) (1,013) (1,075) 

TOTAL 

Income 
 

855 167 534 

Expenditure 
 

(3,209) (3,424) (3,270) 

Surplus/ (deficit) 
 

(2,354) (3,257) (2,736) 

 

Major Initiatives  

¶ Implementation of a new organisational structure (restructure of the organisation); 

¶ Commencement of ICT upgrade work, a new corporate system, Office 365, and enhanced ICT 
security. 

Service Performance Outcome Indicators 

Service Indicator * Actual 
2019ς20 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft  
Budget 

2021ς22 

Note 

Governance Satisfaction 54 55 55 1 

 Note 

1. Both the Forecast and Budget are based on achieving a result at least a percentage better than the 
last Community Satisfaction Survey results achieved by Council (current year survey not released 
until June 2021). 

* the table on the following page explains the calculation of Service Performance Outcome Indicators.
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Service Performance Outcome Indicators 

Service Indicator Performance Measure Computation 

Maternal 
and 
Child Health 

Participation 

Participation in the MCH service. (Percentage of children enrolled 
who participate in the MCH service) 

[Number of children who attend the MCH service at least once (in the financial year) / Number 
of children enrolled in the MCH service] x100 

Participation in the MCH service by Aboriginal children. (Percentage 
of Aboriginal children enrolled who participate in the MCH service) 

[Number of Aboriginal children who attend the MCH service at least once (in the financial year) / 
Number of Aboriginal children enrolled in the MCH service] x100 

Food safety 
Health and 
safety 

Critical and major non-compliance notifications 
(Percentage of critical and major non-compliance notifications that 
are followed up by Council) 

[Number of critical non-compliance notifications and major non-compliance notifications about 
a food premises followed up / Number of critical non-compliance notifications and major non-
compliance notifications about food premises] x 100 

Roads Satisfaction 
Satisfaction with sealed local roads 
(Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how Council has 
performed on the condition of sealed local roads) 

Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how Council has performed on the condition of 
sealed local roads 

Animal 
management 

Health and 
safety 

Animal management prosecutions 
(Percentage of successful animal management prosecutions) 

[Number of successful animal management prosecutions / Number of animal management 
prosecutions] x 100 

Libraries Participation 
Active library members 
(Percentage of the municipal population that are active library 
members) 

[The sum of the number of active library borrowers in the last 3 financial years / The sum of the 
population in the last 3 financial years] x100 

Waste 
collection 

Waste 
diversion 

Kerbside collection waste diverted from landfill 
(Percentage of garbage, recyclables and green organics collected 
from kerbside bins that is diverted from landfill) 

[Weight of recyclables and green organics collected from kerbside bins / Weight of garbage, 
recyclables and green organics collected from kerbside bins] x 100 

Statutory 
planning 

Decision 
making 

Council planning decisions upheld at VCAT 
(Percentage of planning application decisions subject to review by 
VCAT and that were not set aside) 

[Number of VCAT decisions that did not set aside Council's decision in relation to a planning 
application / Number of VCAT decisions in relation to planning applications] x 100 

Governance Satisfaction 
Satisfaction with Council decisions 
(Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how Council has 
performed in making decisions in the interests of the community) 

Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how Council has performed in making decisions in 
the interests of the community 

Aquatic 
facilities*  

Utilisation 
Utilisation of aquatic facilities 
(Number of visits to aquatic facilities per head of municipal 
population) 

Number of visits to aquatic facilities / municipal population 

*Aquatic facilities are not provided by the Borough of Queenscliffe.
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2.6 Reconciliation with budgeted operating result  

Strategic Objectives 
Surplus / 
(deficit) 
$'000 

Expenditure 
$'000 

Income 
$'000 

Strategic Objective 1: Community Wellbeing (2,372) (3,215) (843) 

Strategic Objective 2:Environmental Sustainability (529) (1,914) (1,386) 

Strategic Objective 3:Local Economy 345 (1,457) (1,803) 

Strategic Objective 4:Planning and Heritage (964) (1,078) (114) 

Strategic Objective 5:Governance and Performance (2,736) (3,270) (534) 

Total (6,256) (10,934) (4,679) 

Expenses/other income added in:      

Depreciation (1,373)     

Finance costs 0     

Share of net profits/losses of associates 0     

Net gain/losses on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant 
and equipment 

0 
    

Surplus/(deficit) before funding sources (7,628)     

Funding sources added in:      

Rates and charges revenue 6,792     

Waste charges revenue 0     

Capital grants 2,076     

Capital contributions - monetary 35     

Capital contributions - non-monetary 0     

Total funding sources 8,902     

Operating surplus/(deficit) for the year 1,274     

Less:      

Grants - capital (non-recurrent) (2,076)     

Contributions - monetary - capital (35)     

Non-monetary asset contributions 0     

Underlying surplus/(deficit) for the year (837)     

Less:      

Additional rates funded capex beyond depreciation (3,783)     

Loan principal repayments 0     

Transfers to reserves from operating budget (63)     

Add back:      

Capital grants 2,076     

Contributions - monetary - capital 35     

Proceeds from asset sales 27     

Proceeds from new borrowings 0     

Transfers from reserves to operating budget 2,240     

Accumulated cash surplus brought forward 304     

Break-even cash result (0)     

  

 



 

  

This section presents information in regard to the Financial Statements and Statement of Human 
Resources. The budget information for the year 2021ς22 has been supplemented with projections to 
2024ς25. 
 
This section includes the following financial statements prepared in accordance with the Local 
Government Act 2020 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020. 
 
3.1   Comprehensive Income Statement 
3.2 Balance Sheet 
3.3 Statement of Changes in Equity 
3.4 Statement of Cash Flows 
3.5 Statement of Capital Works 
3.6 Statement of Human Resources 
 

No new capital projects and nonrecurring capital grant opportunities are identified in the projections 
from the year 2022ς23 onward. Council is in the process of developing its Council Plan for 2021ς2025. 
New capital projects and potential nonrecurring capital grant opportunities will be identified and 
ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜŘ ƛƴ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ƴŜǿ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ Ǉƭŀƴ ǿƘƛŎƘ ǿƛƭƭ ōŜ ǇǊŜǎŜƴǘŜŘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳƳunity in September 2021. 

Reported negative total comprehensive result for the year 2022-23 onwards is due to the incomplete 
income items (Grants ς capital) included in the projections.   

Financial data (projections) presented for 2022ς23 to 2024ς25 is subjŜŎǘ ǘƻ ŎƘŀƴƎŜ ǿƘŜƴ ǘƘŜ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ 
new financial plan is finalised in September/October 2021.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

  

3.1 Comprehensive Income Statement 

For the four years ending 30 June 2025en 

Description Notes 

Forecast 
Actual 

Draft 
Budget 

Projections 

2020ς21 2021ς22 2022ς23 2023ς24 2024ς25 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Income       

Rates and charges 4.1.1 7,641 7,945 8,117 8,231 8,395 

Statutory fees and fines 4.1.2 124 132 134 137 139 

User fees 4.1.3 1,768 1,977 2,025 2,074 2,125 

Grants - operating 4.1.4 1,484 1,148 1,095 1,116 1,139 

Grants - capital 4.1.4 4,926 2,076 0 40 40 

Contributions - monetary - capital 4.1.5 52 35 0 0 0 

Other income 4.1.6 216 268 303 327 332 

Net gain on disposal of property, 
infrastructure, plant and equipment 

 825 0 0 0 0 

Total income  17,036 13,581 11,674 11,926 12,171 

Expenses       

Employee costs 4.1.7 4,457 4,873 4,956 5,014 5,139 

Materials and services 4.1.8 5,982 5,733 5,317 5,326 5,485 

Depreciation 4.1.10 1,326 1,373 1,411 1,439 1,468 

Bad and doubtful debts 4.1.9 3 3 3 3 3 

Other expenses 4.1.12 399 325 330 337 344 

Total expenses  12,167 12,307 12,016 12,119 12,438 

Surplus / (deficit) for the year  4,869 1,274 (343) (193) (267) 

Other comprehensive income       

Net asset revaluation increment / 
(decrement) 

4.1.13 0 0 0 0 0 

Total comprehensive result  4,869 1,274 (343) (193) (267) 

ng 30 June 2025 
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3.2 Balance Sheet 

For the four years ending 30 June 2025 

Description Notes 

Forecast 
Actual 

Draft 
Budget 

Projections 

2020ς21 2021ς22 2022ς23 2023ς24 2024ς25 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Assets       

Current assets       

Cash and cash equivalents 4.2.1 8,913 6,210 5,717 6,089 6,520 

Other financial assets 4.2.1 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Trade and other receivables 4.2.1 330 330 330 330 330 

Inventories 4.2.1 4 4 4 4 4 

Other assets 4.2.1 225 225 225 225 225 

Total current assets  10,472 7,769 7,276 7,648 8,079 

Non-current assets       

Investments in associates 4.2.1 240 240 240 240 240 

Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 4.2.1 138,077 141,830 141,568 141,006 140,345 

Total non-current assets  138,317 142,070 141,807 141,246 140,584 

Total assets  148,789 149,839 149,083 148,894 148,663 

Liabilities       

Current liabilities       

Trade and other payables 4.2.2 1,373 1,121 682 658 666 

Trust funds and deposits 4.2.2 16 16 16 16 16 

Provisions 4.2.2 952 976 1,001 1,026 1,051 

Other liabilities 4.2.2 80 80 80 80 80 

Total current liabilities  2,421 2,194 1,779 1,780 1,814 

Non-current liabilities       

Provisions 4.2.2 106 109 111 114 117 

Total non-current liabilities  106 109 111 114 117 

Total liabilities  2,527 2,303 1,890 1,894 1,931 

Net assets  146,262 147,536 147,193 147,000 146,732 

Equity       

Accumulated surplus 4.3.1 95,128 98,579 98,188 97,994 97,727 

Revaluation Reserve 4.3.1 43,498 43,498 43,498 43,498 43,498 

Other reserves 4.3.1 7,637 5,459 5,507 5,507 5,507 

Total equity  146,262 147,536 147,193 147,000 146,732 
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3.3 Statement of Changes in Equity 

For the four years ending 30 June 2025: 

Description Notes 

Forecast 
Actual 

 

Draft 
Budget 

Projections 

2020ς21 2021ς22 2022ς23 2023ς24 2024ς25 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Accumulated Surplus       

Opening Balance 1st July  91,998 95,128 98,579 98,188 97,994 

Adjustment on change in accounting policy       

Surplus / (deficit) for the year  4,869 1,274 (343) (193) (267) 

Transfer to other reserves  (4,977) (63) (48) 0 0 

Transfer from other reserves  3,236 2,240 0 0 0 

Closing Balance 30th June 4.3.1 95,128 98,579 98,188 97,994 97,727 

Revaluation Reserve       

Opening Balance 1st July  43,498 43,498 43,498 43,498 43,498 

Net asset revaluation 
increment/(decrement) 

 0 0 0 0 0 

Closing Balance 30th June 4.3.1 43,498 43,498 43,498 43,498 43,498 

Other Reserves       

Opening Balance 1st July  5,897 7,637 5,459 5,507 5,507 

Transfer to other reserves  4,977 63 48 0 0 

Transfer from other reserves  (3,236) (2,240) 0 0 0 

Closing Balance 30th June 4.3.1 7,637 5,459 5,507 5,507 5,507 

Total Equity       

Opening Balance 1st July  141,393 146,262 147,536 147,193 147,000 

Surplus / (deficit) for the year  4,869 1,274 (343) (193) (267) 

Closing Balance 30th June 4.3.1 146,262 147,536 147,193 147,000 146,732 
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3.4 Statement of Cash Flows 

For the four years ending 30 June 2025: 

Description Notes 

Forecast 
Actual 

Draft 
Budget 

Projections 

2020ς21 2021ς22 2022ς23 2023ς24 2024ς25 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Cash flows from operating activities       

Receipts       

Rates and charges  7,585 7,945 8,117 8,231 8,395 

Statutory fees and fines  120 132 134 137 139 

User fees  1,765 1,977 2,025 2,074 2,125 

Grants - Operating  1,364 1,148 1,095 1,116 1,139 

Grants - Capital  4,954 2,076 0 40 40 

Contributions - monetary - capital  52 35 0 0 0 

Interest received  24 50 80 100 100 

Other receipts  88 218 223 227 232 

Total receipts 4.4.1 15,953 13,581 11,674 11,926 12,171 

Payments       

Employee costs  (4,580) (4,846) (4,928) (4,986) (5,111) 

Materials and services  (5,716) (5,737) (5,337) (5,304) (5,446) 

Short-term, low value and variable lease payments  (20) (21) (21) (22) (22) 

Other payments  (359) (332) (330) (336) (343) 

Total payments 4.4.1 (10,676) (10,936) (10,617) (10,648) (10,923) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 4.4.1 5,278 2,645 1,057 1,278 1,248 

Cash flows from investing activities       

Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and 
equipment 

 (6,773) (5,375) (1,567) (943) (843) 

Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure, 
plant and equipment 

 3,596 27 18 37 26 

Proceeds from sale of investments  5,862 0 0 0 0 

Net cash provided by / (used in) investing 
activities 

4.4.2 2,685 (5,348) (1,550) (906) (817) 

Cash flows from financing activities       

Finance costs   (0) 0 0 0 0 

Repayment of borrowings  (29) 0 0 0 0 

Net cash provided by / (used in) financing 
activities 

4.4.3 (29) 0 0 0 0 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents 

 7,934 (2,703) (493) 372 431 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
financial year 

 979 8,913 6,210 5,717 6,089 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 
financial year 

4.2.1 8,913 6,210 5,717 6,089 6,520 

 



 

  

3.5 Statement of Capital Works 

For the four years ending 30 June 2025: 

Description Notes 

Forecast 
Actual 

Draft 
Budget 

Projections 

2020ς21 2021ς22 2022ς23 2023ς24 2024ς25 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Property       

Buildings  3,542 3,261 433 254 255 

Total buildings  3,542 3,261 433 254 255 

Total property 4.5.1 3,542 3,261 433 254 255 

Plant and equipment       

Plant, machinery and equipment  154 119 80 158 112 

Fixtures, fittings and furniture  5 5 5 5 5 

Computers and telecommunications  145 201 237 85 45 

Total plant and equipment 4.5.1 304 325 322 248 162 

Infrastructure       

Roads  2,296 360 110 110 110 

Footpaths and cycleways  122 108 20 20 20 

Drainage  231 80 100 100 100 

Recreational, leisure and community facilities  406 423 97 98 100 

Parks, open space and streetscapes  260 521 77 77 77 

Other infrastructure  185 78 10 10 10 

Total infrastructure 4.5.1 3,500 1,571 414 415 417 

Total capital works expenditure 4.5.1 7,346 5,157 1,169 917 834 

Represented by:       

New asset expenditure  674 859 96 43 30 

Asset renewal expenditure  1,070 974 960 837 786 

Asset upgrade expenditure  5,602 3,324 113 38 18 

Total capital works expenditure 4.5.1 7,346 5,157 1,169 917 834 



 

Borough of Queenscliffe ς Budget 2020/21   36 

 

3.6 Statement of Human Resources 

For the four years ending 30 June 2025, a summary of human resources expenditure, categorised 
according to the organisational structure of Council, is included below: 

Description 
2021ς22 2022ς23 2023ς24 2024ς25 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 
Community Wellbeing     

Permanent - Full time 357 366 375 384 

 Female 29 30 31 31 

 Male 328 336 344 353 

Permanent - Part time 850 871 893 916 

 Female 678 695 713 730 

 Male 100 103 106 108 

Vacant/new positions 72 73 75 77 

Total Community Wellbeing 1,207 1,237 1,268 1,300 

Environmental Sustainability     

Permanent - Full time 151 155 159 163 

 Female 0 0 0 0 

 Male 56 57 59 60 

Vacant/new positions 95 98 100 103 

Permanent - Part time 79 81 83 85 

 Female 79 81 83 85 

 Male 0 0 0 0 

Total Environmental Sustainability 230 236 242 248 

Local Economy     

Permanent - Full time 297 304 312 320 

 Female 297 304 312 320 

 Male 0 0 0 0 

Permanent - Part time 195 199 204 210 

 Female 122 125 128 131 

 Male 73 75 77 79 

Total Local Economy 491 504 516 529 

Planning and Heritage     

Permanent - Full time 440 451 462 474 

 Female 132 135 139 142 

 Male 201 206 211 217 

Vacant/new positions 107 109 112 115 

Permanent - Part time 130 133 137 140 

 Female 130 133 137 140 

 Male 0 0 0 0 

Total Planning and Heritage 570 584 599 614 

Governance and Performance     

Permanent - Full time 1,277 1,365 1,399 1,434 

 Female 341 406 416 427 

 Male 935 959 983 1,007 

Permanent - Part time 533 546 560 574 

 Female 445 456 468 479 

 Male 0 0 0 0 

Vacant/new positions 88 90 92 95 

Total Governance and Performance 1,810 1,911 1,959 2,008 

Casuals, temporary and other 
expenditure 

566 484 431 442 

Capitalised labour costs 111 114 117 120 

Total staff expenditure 4,985 5,070 5,131 5,259 



 

  

A summary of the number of full time equivalent (FTE) Council staff in relation to human resources 
expenditure, categorised according to the organisational structure of Council, is included below: 

Description 
2021ς22 2022ς23 2023ς24 2024ς25 

FTE FTE FTE FTE 

Community Wellbeing     

Permanent - Full time 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.2 

 Female 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 

 Male 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 

Permanent - Part time 9.1 9.1 9.1 9.1 

 Female 7.6 7.6 7.6 7.6 

 Male 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 

Vacant/new positions 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 

Total Community Wellbeing 12.3 12.3 12.3 12.3 

Environmental Sustainability     

Permanent - Full time 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 

 Female 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

 Male 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 

Vacant/new positions 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 

Permanent - Part time 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 

 Female 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 

 Male 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Total Environmental Sustainability 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 

Local Economy     

Permanent - Full time 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 

 Female 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 

 Male 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Permanent - Part time 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 

 Female 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 

 Male 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 

Total Local Economy 5.3 5.3 5.3 5.3 

Planning and Heritage     

Permanent - Full time 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 

 Female 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 

 Male 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 

Vacant/new positions 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 

Permanent - Part time 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 

 Female 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 

 Male 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Total Planning and Heritage 4.8 4.8 4.8 4.8 

Governance and Performance     

Permanent - Full time 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 

 Female 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 

 Male 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 

Vacant/new positions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Permanent - Part time 5.5 5.5 5.5 5.5 

 Female 4.3 4.3 4.3 4.3 

 Male 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Vacant/new positions 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 

Total Governance and Performance 15.5 15.5 15.5 15.5 

Casuals and temporary staff 5.5 4.5 3.9 3.9 

Capitalised labour 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 

Total staff numbers 46.6 45.6 45.0 45.0 

 



 

  

This section presents detailed information on material components of the financial statements. 

The Borough of Queenscliffe has adopted a materiality threshold of 10% or a dollar amount of 
$100,000. Notes have not been provided for budgets below the materiality threshold, unless the 
amount is considered to be material because of its nature. 

This section includes notes to the financial statements for each of the following items: 

4.1  Comprehensive Income Statement 

4.1.1  Rates and charges 

4.1.2  Statutory fees and fines 

4.1.3  User fees 

4.1.4  Grants 

4.1.5  Contributions 

4.1.6  Other income 

4.1.7  Employee costs 

4.1.8  Materials and services 

4.1.9  Bad and doubtful debts 

4.1.10  Depreciation 

4.1.11  Borrowing costs 

4.1.12  Other expenses 

4.1.13  Net asset revaluation increment 

4.2  Balance Sheet 

  4.2.1 Assets 

  4.2.2 Liabilities 

  4.2.3 Interest-bearing liabilities 

4.3  Statement of Changes in Equity 

  4.3.1 Reserves 

  4.3.2 Equity 

4.4  Statement of Cash Flows 

  4.4.1 Net cash provided by operating activities 

  4.4.2 Net cash used in investing activities 

  4.4.3 Net cash provided by/ (used in) financing activities 

4.5  Capital works program 

  4.5.1 Summary 

  4.5.2 Current Budget 

  4.5.3 Works carried forward from the 2018ς19 year  



 

  

4.1.1 Rates and charges 

Rates and ŎƘŀǊƎŜǎ ŀǊŜ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜŘ ōȅ ǘƘŜ !Ŏǘ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ wŜƎǳƭŀǘƛƻƴǎ ǘƻ ōŜ ŘƛǎŎƭƻǎŜŘ ƛƴ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ōǳŘƎŜǘΦ 
 
As per the Local Government Act 2020 (the Act), Council is required to have a Revenue and Rating Plan 
which is a four year plan for how Council will generate income to deliver the Council Plan, program 
and services and capital works commitments over a four-year period.  
 
In developing the Budget, rates and charges were identified as an important source of revenue. 
Planning for future rate increases has therefore been an important component of the financial 
planning process. The Fair Go Rates System (FGRS) sets out the maximum amount councils may 
increase rates in a year. For 2021ς22 the FGRS cap has been set at 1.5%. The cap applies to both general 
rates and municipal cƘŀǊƎŜǎ ŀƴŘ ƛǎ ŎŀƭŎǳƭŀǘŜŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ōŀǎƛǎ ƻŦ ŎƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ŀǾŜǊŀƎŜ ǊŀǘŜǎ ŀƴŘ ŎƘŀǊƎŜǎΦ  
 
The level of required rates and charges has been considered in this context, with reference to Council's 
other sources of income and the planned expenditure on services and works to be undertaken for the 
community. 
 
To achieve these objectives while maintaining service levels and a strong capital expenditure program, 
the average general rate will increase by 1.5% in line with the rate cap.  
 
The Valuer-General reviews the value of every property in the municipality annually, and these 
property values are used to calculate individual property rates. This annual revaluation does not result 
in a net gain or loss of revenue to Council. Ratepayers may see rate increases that differ from the 
average 1.5҈ ƛƴŎǊŜŀǎŜ ōŜŎŀǳǎŜ ƻŦ ŎƘŀƴƎŜǎ ǘƻ ǘƘŜƛǊ ǇǊƻǇŜǊǘȅ ǾŀƭǳŜ ǊŜƭŀǘƛǾŜ ǘƻ ǘƘŀǘ ƻŦ ƻǘƘŜǊ ǊŀǘŜǇŀȅŜǊǎΩ 
properties. 
 
The Act allows councils to calculate a separate charge for the collection and disposal of waste 
management services. This enables recovery of all waste management costs, which the State 
Government acknowledges to be a user pay service with typical cost increases significantly higher than 
CPI.  
 

  



 

  

4.1.1(a) The reconciliation of the total rates and charges to the Comprehensive Income 
Statement is as follows: 

Descriptions 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
Budget 

2021ς22 
Change 

$ $ $ % 

General rates * 6,638,572 6,771,616 133,044 2.0% 

Municipal charge * 0 0 0 0.0% 

Waste management charges 976,769 1,153,443 176,674 18.1% 

Supplementary rates and rate adjustments 21,186 10,000 (11,186) (52.8%) 

Cultural and recreational rates 3,792 3,889 97 2.6% 

Interest on rates and charges 5,000 10,000 5,000 100.0% 

Less: rebate (properties of environmental 
interest) 

(3,946) (4,000) (54) 1.4% 

Total rates and charges 7,641,373 7,944,948 303,575 4.0% 

* These items are subject to the rate cap established under the FGRS. 

4.1.1(b) The rate in the dollar to be levied as general rates under Section 158 of the Act for 
each type or class of land compared with the previous financial year  

Type or class of land 
2020ς21 2021ς22 

Change 
cents/$CIV cents/$CIV 

General rate for rateable residential properties 0.213319 0.198800 (6.8%) 

General rate for rateable residential vacant land properties 0.266457 0.248500 (6.7%) 

General rate for rateable commercial properties 0.277315 0.258440 (6.8%) 

General rate for rateable tourist accommodation properties 0.234651 0.218680 (6.8%) 

Rate concession for rateable cultural and recreational 
properties  

0.053330 0.049700 (6.8%) 

 

4.1.1(c) The estimated total amount to be raised by general rates in relation to each type or 
class of land, and the estimated total amount to be raised by general rates, 
compared with the previous financial year 

Type or class of land 
2020ς21 2021ς22 Change 

$ $ $ % 

Residential  5,399,617 5,583,507 183,890 3.4% 

Residential vacant land 131,270 145,870 14,600 11.1% 

Commercial  348,742 321,797 (26,944) (7.7%) 

Tourist accommodation 758,943 720,443 (38,501) -5.1% 

Total amount to be raised by general rates 6,638,572 6,771,616 133,044 2.0% 

 

  



 

  

4.1.1(d) The number of assessments in relation to each type of class of land, and the total 
number of assessments, compared with the previous financial year 

Type or class of land 
2020ς21 2021ς22 Change 

Number Number Number % 

Residential 2,521 2,548 27 1.1% 

Residential vacant land 55 59 4 7.3% 

Commercial 160 159 (1) (0.6%) 

Tourist accommodation 354 331 (23) (6.5%) 

Cultural and recreational 6 6 0 0.0% 

Total number of assessments 3,096 3,103 7 0.2% 

 

4.1.1(e) The basis of valuation to be used is the Capital Improved Value (CIV) 

4.1.1(f) The estimated total value of each type or class of land, and the estimated total value 
of land, compared with the previous financial year 

Type or class of land 
2020ς21 2021ς22 Change 

$ $ $ % 

Residential  2,531,240,000 2,808,600,000 277,360,000 11.0% 

Residential vacant land 49,265,000 58,700,000 9,435,000 19.2% 

Commercial 125,756,500 124,515,000 -1,241,500 (1.0%) 

Tourist accommodation 323,435,000 329,450,000 6,015,000 1.9% 

Cultural and recreational  7,110,000 7,825,000 715,000 10.1% 

Total value of land 3,036,806,500 3,329,090,000 292,283,500 9.6% 

 

4.1.1(g) $Nil municipal charge is to be levied under Section 159 of the Act (2020ς21 $nil). 

4.1.1(h) The rate or unit amount to be levied for each type of service rate or charge under 
Section 162 of the Act compared with the previous financial year 

 Type of Charge 

Per 
Rateable 
Property 

Per 
Rateable 
Property 

Change 

2020ς21 2021ς22 

$ $ $ % 

Kerbside waste 213.75 216.30 2.55 1.2% 

Green waste 43.20 70.40 27.20 63.0% 

Public waste* 71.85 99.80 27.95 38.9% 

Additional set of bins 234.60 239.30 4.70 2.0% 

One extra bin 117.30 119.60 2.30 2.0% 

* In 2020ς21, a one-off rebate on public waste management charge. 



 

  

4.1.1(i) The estimated total amount to be raised by each type of service rate or charge, and 
the estimated total amount to be raised by service rates and charges, compared 
with the previous financial year 

 Type of Charge 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
Budget 

2021ς22 
Change 

$ $ $ % 

Kerbside waste  610,738 620,148 9,410 1.5% 

Green waste 124,855 204,135 79,280 63.5% 

Public waste 222,892 309,658 86,766 38.9% 

Additional set of bins 15,767 16,990 1,223 7.8% 

One extra bin 2,517 2,513 -4 -0.2% 

Total waste management charges 976,769 1,153,443 176,674 18.1% 

4.1.1(j) The estimated total amount to be raised by all rates and charges compared with 
the previous financial year 

Descriptions 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
Budget 

2021ς22 
Change 

$ $ $ % 

General rates 6,638,572 6,771,616 133,044 2.0% 

Municipal charge 0 0 0 0.0% 

Waste management charges 976,769 1,153,443 176,674 18.1% 

Supplementary rates and rate adjustments 21,186 10,000 (11,186) (52.8%) 

Cultural and recreational rates 3,792 3,889 97 2.6% 

Interest on rates and charges 5,000 10,000 5,000 100.0% 

Less: rebate (properties of environmental 
interest) 

(3,946) (4,000) (54) 1.4% 

Total rates and charges 7,641,373 7,944,948 303,575 4.0% 

4.1.1(k) Fair Go Rates System Compliance 

The Borough of Queenscliffe is required to comply with the State GoǾŜǊƴƳŜƴǘΩǎ CŀƛǊ Dƻ wŀǘŜǎ {ȅǎǘŜƳ 
(FGRS). The table below details the budget assumptions, consistent with the requirements of the Fair 
Go Rates System.  

Descriptions 
Final 

Budget 
2020ς21 

Draft 
Budget 

2021ς22 

Total Rates (annualised) $6,508,586 $6,671,583 

Number of rateable properties 3,090 3,097 

Base Average Rate $2,106.34 $2,154.21 

Maximum Rate Increase (set by the State Government) 2.00% 1.50% 

Capped Average Rate $2,148.47 $2,186.52 

Maximum General Rates and Municipal Charges Revenue $6,638,757 $6,771,656 

Budgeted General Rates and Municipal Charges Revenue $6,638,571 $6,771,616 

 



 

  

4.1.1(l) Any significant changes that may affect the estimated amounts to be raised by rates 
and charges 

There are no known significant changes which may affect the estimated amounts to be raised by rates 
and charges. However, the total amount to be raised by rates and charges may be affected by: 

¶ The making of supplementary valuations (2021ς22: estimated $10,000); 

¶ The variation of returned levels of value (e.g. valuation appeals); 

¶ Changes in use of land such that rateable land becomes non-rateable land and vice 
versa; 

¶ Changes in use of land such that residential land becomes commercial land and vice 
versa; and/or 

¶ Changes in use of land such that residential land becomes tourist accommodation land 
and vice versa. 

4.1.1(m) Differential rates 

Rates to be levied 

The rate and amount of rates payable in relation to land in each category of differential are: 

¶ A general rate of 0.19880% (0.19880 cents in the dollar of CIV) for all rateable residential 
properties. 

¶ A general rate of 0.24850% (0.24850 cents in the dollar of CIV) for all rateable residential vacant 
land properties. 

¶ A general rate of 0.25844% (0.25844 cents in the dollar of CIV) for all rateable commercial 
properties including properties with six or more bedrooms which are rented out as holiday 
accommodation. 

¶ A general rate of 0.21868% (0.21868 cents in the dollar of CIV) for all rateable tourist 
accommodation properties, that is properties having five or less bedrooms which are rented 
out as holiday accommodation.  

¶ A general (concessional) rate of 0.04970% (0.04970 cents in the dollar of CIV) for all rateable 
cultural and recreational properties.  

Each differential rate will be determined by multiplying the Capital Improved Value of rateable land 
(categorised by the characteristics described below) by the relevant percentages indicated above. 

Council believes each differential rate will contribute to the equitable and efficient carrying out of 
council functions.  

Details of the objectives of each differential rate, the types of classes of land which are subject to each 
differential rate and the uses of each differential rate are set out ƛƴ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ǊŜǾŜƴǳŜ ŀƴŘ ǊŀǘƛƴƎ ǇƭŀƴΦ 

4.1.1(n) Waste management charges 

An important component of /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ 2021ς22 budgŜǘ ǇǊƻŎŜǎǎ ƛǎ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳƛƴƎ ŎƻƳƳƛǘƳŜƴǘΣ ƛƴ 
accordance with its revenue and rating plan, to three key principles in relation to funding waste 
management services: 

1. Full cost recovery of all waste management services except for administration costs 
(administration cost associated with waste management services has not been considered in 
determining waste management charges for 2021ς22); 



 

  

2. Clear identification of the waste management cost streams of kerbside waste, green waste and 
public waste and specifying these on the Rate Notice where applicable; and 

3. Disclosure of all costs associated with each of the waste management streams as included in the 
table below. 

In its revenue and rating plan, Council has determined the most equitable method of full waste cost 
recovery as follows: 

¶ Kerbside waste, applicable to residential and tourist accommodation properties only, is 
charged at a fixed amount; 

¶ Green waste, applicable to residential and tourist accommodation properties only, is 
charged at a fixed amount; and 

¶ Public waste, applicable to all rateable properties, is charged at a fixed amount. 

The Local Government Act 1989 permits Council to raise separate service charges for the recovery of 
waste management services, rather than include this in general rates. Seperating out waste 
management charges from general rates to achieve full cost recovery remains the most financially 
responsible option available to Council given the State GovernmentΩǎ rate capping legislation.  

Waste management costs (net of government grants) 

The following is a list of all waste management cost streams and waste management charges included 
in the 2021ς22 Budget, summarised by waste charge type. 
 

Description 
Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
Budget 

2021ς22 

Increase/(decrease) 

$ % 

Kerbside waste collection (including hard waste) 286,000 302,000 16,000 5.6% 

Landfill disposal including landfill levy 167,000 205,000 38,000 22.8% 

Additional pensioner concession offered by BOQ 45,500 43,440 (2,060) (4.5%) 

Recycling disposal (income)/expenditure 66,300 77,000 10,700 16.1% 

Roadside e waste collection 10,000 10,000 0 0.0% 

Waste collection bin renewal 15,000 15,000 0 0.0% 

Regional waste management group 2,407 2,407 (0) (0.0%) 

Waste & litter education 0 1,000 1,000 0.0% 

FOGOς roll out cost 0 120,000 120,000 0.0% 

FOGO ς roll out grant funding 0 (72,000) (72,000) 0.0% 

Sub-total: Kerbside waste costs 592,207 703,847 111,640 18.9% 

Green waste - pickup & disposal of waste 170,000 161,000 (9,000) (5.3%) 

Renewable Organics Network 16,000 0 (16,000) (100.0%) 

Sub-total: Green waste costs 186,000 161,000 (25,000) (13.4%) 

Public waste - pickup & disposal of waste 170,000 173,400 3,400 2.0% 

Illegal waste dumping 3,000 2,000 (1,000) (33.3%) 

Fixed price contract - street cleaning and sweeping 118,000 120,360 2,360 2.0% 

Fixed price contract - beach cleaning 37,740 38,495 755 2.0% 

Beach cleaning subsidy (12,495) (12,000) 495 (4.0%) 

Sub-total: Public waste costs 316,245 322,255 6,010 1.9% 

Total: Waste management costs 1,094,452 1,187,102 92,650 8.5% 

 



 

  

Total waste management costs in 2021ς22 (net of government grants) is budgeted to increase by 
$92,650 (8.5%) compared with the 2020ς21 financial year. This increase mainly comprises: 

¶ $48,000 roll out cost, Food Organics and Garden Organics (FOGO) waste service (net of 
government grant); 

¶ $38,000 increase in landfill disposal expenses including landfill levy; 

¶ $16,000 increase in kerbside waste collection cost; and  

¶ $11,000 increase in recycling disposal cost due to increase in volume. 

 

Waste management charges 

Description 
Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
Budget 

2021ς22 

Increase/(decrease) 

$ % 

Kerbside waste charge 610,738 620,148 9,410 1.5% 

Kerbside waste charge - additional set of bins 15,767 16,990 1,223 7.8% 

Kerbside waste charge - one additional bin 2,517 2,513 (4) (0.2%) 

Kerbside waste charge 629,022 639,650 10,628 1.7% 

Green waste charge 123,841 202,022 78,181 63.1% 

Green waste charge - optional 1,014 2,113 1,099 108.4% 

Green waste charge 124,855 204,135 79,280 63.5% 

Public waste charge 222,892 309,658 86,766 38.9% 

Total: Waste management charges 976,769 1,153,443 176,674 18.1% 

 

Before calculating waste charges to be applied in the 2021ς22 financial year, Council is budgeting to 
transfer a total of $28,793 from surplus funds forecast to be held in green waste reserves and public 
waste reserve at 30 June 2021. Further, Council is budgeting to recover a shortfall of $43,135 in green 
waste reserve (due to a significant increase in green waste volume in 2020ς21).  

To continue with the achievement of full cost recovery for waste services, total income from waste 
management charges would have increased by $224,674 in 2021ς22. However, Council has decided to 
delay recovering $48,000 (net cost) associated with the roll out of FOGO service to 2022ς23 financial 
year. This amount will temporarily be financed through unallocated cash reserve of the Borough. As a 
result, the net increase in the total income from waste management charges for 2021ς22 is expected 
be $176,674. 

The total waste management charge for 2020ς21 is understated due to the one-off rebate offered 
totalling to $130,000. If there had not been a rebate offered in 2020ς21, the increase in waste 
management charges for 2021ς22 would have been only $46,674 (approximately $16.30 increase per 
property). 

  



 

  

The fixed amount to be levied for each type of property 

 Type of Property 
 

Actual  
2020ς21 

Draft 
Budget 

2021ς22 
Change 

  $ $ $ % 

Residential  328.80 386.50 57.70 17.5% 

Residential vacant land 71.85 99.80 27.95 38.9% 

Commercial 71.85 99.80 27.95 38.9% 

Tourist accommodation 328.80 386.50 57.70 17.5% 

 
 

In preparing the waste management budget, a set of assumptions has been made about the estimated 
costs of the waste management services in 2021ς22. Given the widely fluctuating nature of waste 
services, these annual budget assumptions will be monitored, with any variance to be reported to 
Council via quarterly financial reports during the 2021ς22 year as necessary. 

 
Waste management reserve funds 

Description 
Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
Budget 

2021ς22 

Increase/(decrease) 

$ % 

Kerbside waste reserve fund     

Opening balance (20,618) 16,196 36,815 (178.6%) 

Transfers to reserve 36,815 0 (36,815) (100.0%) 

Transfers from reserve 0 (64,196) (64,196) 0.0% 

Closing balance 16,196 (48,000) (64,196) (396.4%) 

Green waste reserve fund     

Opening balance 18,010 (43,135) (61,145) (339.5%) 

Transfers to reserve 0 43,135 43,135 0.0% 

Transfers from reserve (61,145) 0 61,145 (100.0%) 

Closing balance (43,135) (0) 43,135 (100.0%) 

Public waste reserve fund     

Opening balance (24,050) 12,597 36,647 (152.4%) 

Transfers to reserve 36,647 0 (36,647) (100.0%) 

Transfers from reserve 0 (12,597) (12,597) 0.0% 

Closing balance 12,597 0 (12,597) (100.0%) 

      

Total: Waste management reserve funds (14,342) (48,000) (33,658) 234.7% 

      

Net waste reserve transfers for the financial year 12,317 (33,658) 45,975 373.3% 

 

An annual reconciliation is completed at each financial year-end, to determine the surplus/ (deficit) 
between waste management charges collected from ratepayers and the actual waste costs incurred 
by Council for the year. Reserve funds are held on the Balance Sheet to record any net surplus 
achieved, so Council can then determine that amount which will be allocated towards meeting the 



 

  

cost of waste services in the next financial year, while retaining part of the surplus as a contingency to 
address emerging risks with respect to waste management services in future years. 

4.1.2 Statutory fees and fines 

Description 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
Budget 

2021ς22 
Change 

$'000 $'000 $'000 % 

Town planning fees 90 90 0 0.0% 

Building, pool and spa fees 26 24 (2) (8.5%) 

Infringements and costs 3 4 1 25.0% 

Permits 1 10 9 1152.2% 

Fines Victoria court recoveries 0 0 0 0.0% 

Land information certificates 4 4 0 0.0% 

Total statutory fees and fines  124 132 8 6.3% 

 
Statutory fees and fines relate mainly to fees and fines levied in accordance with legislation. 
Infringements income is predominantly from parking fines, with minor fines issued for animals and 
local laws infringements. 
Increases in statutory fees are made in accordance with legislative requirements and, given the 
difficulty in estimating transaction volume; the budget for statutory fees is reasonably consistent with 
the 2020ς21 forecast except for permit fees as Council waived annual local law permit fees for 2020ς
21 as a part of the COVID-19 relief program directed at businesses. 

A detailed listing of statutory fees is included in Appendix A. 

4.1.3 User fees 

Description 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
Budget 

2021ς22 
Change 

$'000 $'000 $'000 % 

Tourist park fees 1,549 1,724 175 11.3% 

Aged services 176 176 0 0.0% 

Registration and other permits 23 58 35 149.8% 

Tourism 12 9 (3) (21.7%) 

Other fees and charges (< $10,000 each) 9 11 2 23.3% 

Total user fees 1,768 1,977 209 11.8% 
 

 

User charges relate mainly to the recovery of service delivery costs through the charging of fees to 
ǳǎŜǊǎ ƻŦ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ǎŜǊǾƛŎŜs, consistent with principles in Council Policy CP047: User Fees and Charges. 
In setting the budget, the key principle for determining the level of user charges is that increases reflect 
CPI or market levels. 

User charges are projected to increase by $209,000 (11.8%) compared with the 2020ς21 financial year.  

¢ƘŜ ŦŜŜǎ ŦǊƻƳ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ¢ƻǳǊƛǎǘ tarks contribute the largest portion of the user fees budget, with a 
total budget in 2021ς22 of $1,724,000. The increase of $175,000 is mainly due to the projected 
recovery of tourism activities and occupancy levels of tourist parks back to pre-COVID levels. It is 
expected that the increase in income due to the indexation on current tourist park fees will be offset 



 

  

by the loss of income resulting from the closure of some sites at Queenscliffe Tourist Parks due to the 
planned development activities. However, due to the uncertainties associated with the current 
pandemic, it is difficult to predict the direction of the tourism-related activities in 2021ς22. Any 
variance from these key assumptions will be reported to Council via quarterly financial reports during 
the 2021ς22 year as necessary. 

The increase in registration and other permits fees represents the environmental health fees and 
charges Council waived in 2020ς21 as a part of the COVID-19 relief program directed at businesses. 

A detailed listing of user fees is included in Appendix A. 

4.1.4 Grants 

Operating and capital government grants include all monies received from Victorian and 
Commonwealth DƻǾŜǊƴƳŜƴǘ ǎƻǳǊŎŜǎ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ǇǳǊǇƻǎŜǎ ƻŦ ŦǳƴŘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ŘŜƭƛǾŜǊȅ ƻŦ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ǎŜǊǾƛŎŜǎ ŀƴŘ 
projects.  

 

Description 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
Budget 

2021ς22 
Change 

$'000 $'000 $'000 % 

Grants are received in respect of the following:     

Summary of grants:     

Commonwealth funded grants 1,618 920 (697) (43%) 

State government funded grants 4,736 2,296 (2,440) (52%) 

Other funded grants 57 8 (49) (86%) 

Total grants received 6,410 3,224 (3,186) (50%) 

(a) Operating grants     

Recurrent - Commonwealth government     

Aged services 390 390 0 0% 

Financial assistance grants 117 499 382 325% 

Recurrent - State government     

Maternal and child health 58 58 (1) (1%) 

Fire services property levy administration 41 41 0 0% 

Beach cleaning 39 12 (28) (71%) 

School crossing supervision 30 31 1 3% 

Aged services 18 18 0 0% 

Walk to School 0 10 10 0% 

Other (<$10,000 each) 7 9 3 40% 

Recurrent - Other     

Tobacco activity program 8 8 0 0% 

Total recurrent operating grants 708 1,076 368 52% 

Non-recurrent - State government     

Outdoor eating and entertainment 250 0 (250) (100%) 

Community activation and social isolation 59 0   

Infrastructure and building block grant 35 0 (35) (100%) 

Boat ramp upgarde - project manager 38 0 (38) (100%) 



 

  

Description 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
Budget 

2021ς22 
Change 

$'000 $'000 $'000 % 

Coastal protection 332 0 (332) (101%) 

This Girl Can  14 0 (14) (100%) 

Waste management and recycling 10 72 62 620% 

Non-recurrent - State government - cont.     

Covid safe Australia day 20 0 (20) (100%) 

Pedestrian safety 15 0 (15) (100%) 

Non-recurrent - Other     

Other (<$10,000 each) 3 0 (3) (100%) 

Total non-recurrent operating grants 776 72 (704) (91%) 

Total operating grants 1,484 1,148 (336) (23%) 

(b) Capital grants     

Non-recurrent - Commonwealth government     

Roads 1,110 31 (1,079) (97%) 

Non-recurrent - State government     

Buildings 3,220 2,005 (1,215) (38%) 

Parks, open space and streetscapes 400 0 (400) (100%) 

Roads 15 0 (15) (100%) 

Other infrastructure 25 0 (25) (100%) 

Footpaths and cycleways 10 40 30 300% 

Information technology 100 0 (100) (100%) 

Non-recurrent - Other         

Other infrastructure 46 0 (46) (100%) 

Total non-recurrent capital grants 4,926 2,076 (2,850) (58%) 

 

Operating grants include all monies received from State and Federal government and community 
ǎƻǳǊŎŜǎ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ǇǳǊǇƻǎŜǎ ƻŦ ŦǳƴŘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ŘŜƭƛǾŜǊȅ ƻŦ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ǎŜǊǾƛŎŜǎ ǘƻ ǊŀǘŜǇŀȅŜǊǎΦ  

Total recurrent operating grants are forecast to increase by $368,000 (52%) compared to 2020ς21, 
which is mainly due to the assumption that a part of the 2021ς22 financial assistance grants is not 
budgeted to be received in advance in 2020ς21. Since the Borough has not undertaken any seaweed 
removal work in 2020ς21, a reduction in beach cleaning operating grant is budgeted for 2021ς22. 
Grants received in the past for seaweed removal activities had significantly been lower than the cost 
incurred. 

Non-recurrent operating grant of $72,000 is estimated to be received in 2021ς22 to roll out Food 
Organics and Garden Organics (FOGO) waste service. Any additional non-recurrent osperating grant 
funding opportunities that Council may be successful in securing will be updated in the quarterly 
forecast reviews to be reported to Council during the 2021ς22 financial year. 

Capital grants include all monies received from State and Federal government for the purposes of 
funding the capital works program.  

Capital grants to be received in 2021ς22 mainly represents remaining grant funding for the 
Queenscliffe Hub project ($1,690,000), the Queenscliff Sports and Recreation Precinct development 
project ($315,000), and the Local Roads and Community Infrastructure program ($31,000). A $40,000 



 

  

grant funding for a new pathway connection between the boat ramp and Hesse Street is the only new 
capital grant included in the 2021ς22 budget. 

Any additional non-recurrent capital grant funding opportunities that Council may be successful in 
securing will be updated in the quarterly forecast reviews, and will be reported to Council during the 
2021ς22 financial year. 

4.1.5 Contributions 

Description 

 
Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
Budget 

2021ς22 
Change 

$'000 $'000 $'000 % 

Monetary - operating 0 0 0 0% 

Monetary - capital 52 35 (17) (33%) 

Non-monetary 0 0 0 0% 

Total contributions 52 35 (17) (33%) 

 

Contributions relate to monies paid by non-government third parties for the purpose of funding the 
ŘŜƭƛǾŜǊȅ ƻŦ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ǎŜǊǾƛŎŜǎ ǘƻ ǊŀǘŜǇŀȅŜǊǎ (operating) and/or provision of buildings and facilities 
(capital). Contributions can also be non-monetary, with an in-kind donation of physical assets to 
Council. All contributions are typically non-recurrent and the amount will vary from year to year, thus 
a comparison by financial year is meaningless. 

The capital contribution of $35,000 from the Queenscliffe Historical Museum towards the Queenscliffe 
Hub project is included in the 2021ς22 budget. 

4.1.6 Other income 

Description 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
Budget 

2021ς22 
Change 

$'000 $'000 $'000 % 

Interest - investment of available funds 30 50 20 67% 

Other rent - lease of Council properties 24 48 24 101% 

Other rent - lease of Crown Land properties 88 100 12 13% 

Contribution from volunteers 70 70 (0) (0%) 

Reimbursements 3 0 (3) (100%) 

Total other income 216 268 52 24% 

 

A significant movement in cash and investments is projected to occur in the 2021ς22 financial year 
with the settlement of the sale of Murray Road land and completion of ongoing capital projects. 
However, due to the timing of these events, the average investment in term deposits is expected to 
be around $7.5 million during the year 2021ς22. Under the assumption that the average interest rate 
is to be between 0.75% to 1% for the 2021ς22 financial year, a $20,000 increase in interest income is 
projected in the budget.  

The value of the contribution provided by volunteers which may otherwise has been paid by Council is 
estimated be $70,000 for 2021ς22 ($70,000 in 2020ς21). 



 

  

The increase in other rent income represents the lease rental fees that Council waived in 2020ς21 as 
a part of the COVID-19 relief program directed at businesses and community organisations.  

4.1.7 Employee costs 

Description 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
Budget 

2021ς22 
Change 

$'000 $'000 $'000 % 

Wages and salaries 3,897 4,256 359 9% 

Superannuation 356 411 55 15% 

Overtime 72 71 (1) (1%) 

Workcover premium 59 64 5 9% 

FBT Expense 50 48 (3) (5%) 

Other 23 24 1 4% 

Total other income 4,457 4,873 417 9% 

 

Employee costs include all labour related expenditure, including wages, salaries and on-costs such as 
allowances, leave entitlements (annual leave and long service leave), employer superannuation, 
rostered days off and time-in-lieu owed to employees, workcover premium and fringe benefits tax. 

Employee costs are forecast to increase by $417,000 (9%) compared to 2020ς21. However, employee 
cost for 2020ς21 is understated approximately by $77,000 due to temporary staff vacancies. If there 
had not been any temporary staff vacancies in 2020ς21, the increase in employee cost for 2021ς22 
would have been $340,000 (7.5%) due to the following key factors: 

¶ $112,000, new position, full time park manager (1 FTE, 2-year contract), to manage tourist parks 
under the revamped operating model; 

¶ $98,000, the incremental cost of new organisational structure effective 1 July 2021. Net increase 
of 1.2 FTEs, i.e. contract management officer (1 FTE), MHWB officer (0.6 FTE), project officer CERP 
(0.6 FTE, 2-year contract), net of the resignation of a General Manager (1 FTE, restructured).  

¶ $78,000, a 2% increase in line with Enterprise Bargaining Agreement (EBA) wage increases; 

¶ $30,000, additional cost for a 12 month maternity cover; 

¶ $21,000, due to the increase in super guarantee percentage to 10% from 9.5% with effect from 1 
July 2021; 

A summary of human resources expenditure, categorised according to the organisational structure of 
Council, is provided for both costs ($) and staff numbers (FTE) directly following the Statement of 
Human Resources at Section 3.6 of this report. 

  



 

  

4.1.8 Materials and services 

Materials and services includes payments to contractors for provision of services, waste management, 
asset maintenance, the purchases of consumables, utility costs and expensed capital works (expensed 
capital works are works associated with Council assets and major projects that do not meet the 
definition of asset expenditure under Australian Accounting Standards). 

Description 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
Budget 

2021ς22 
Change 

$'000 $'000 $'000 % 

Roads, parks and reserves maintenance 651 659 8 1% 

Cleaning of council buildings, amenities and BBQ's 164 201 37 22% 

Maternal and Child Health  74 75 1 2% 

Drainage maintenance  94 104 9 10% 

Aged care services 54 58 4 7% 

Valuation services 4 27 23 575% 

General service delivery 906 793 (114) (13%) 

Waste management 1,117 1,271 154 14% 

Non-recurrent operating projects (rates funded) 328 481 153 47% 

Labour contracts (information technology, building 
surveyor, heritage advisor and specialist backfill) 

361 332 (29) (8%) 

Foreshore and open space maintenance 222 294 72 32% 

Buildings, works, plant and equipment maintenance 155 166 12 8% 

Utilities 294 327 34 11% 

Contribution to Geelong Regional Library 
Corporation 

218 222 4 2% 

Insurance 244 271 27 11% 

Information technology software and maintenance 
agreements 

138 159 21 15% 

Local Government election costs 85 0 (85) (100%) 

Non-recurrent operating projects (grant funded) 551 14 (537) (97%) 

Office administration 255 220 (35) (14%) 

Training and staff development 67 59 (8) (12%) 

Other  0 0 0 0% 

Total materials and services 5,982 5,733 (248) (4%) 

Materials and services are forecast to decrease by $248,000 (4%) compared with the 2020ς21 financial 
year. However, this decrease is mainly due to the significant amount of grant funded operating projects 
(non-recurrent) carried out in 2020ς21. 

Excluding waste managŜƳŜƴǘ Ŏƻǎǘ όŜȄǇƭŀƛƴŜŘ ƛƴ ƴƻǘŜ ά4.1.1(n) WasǘŜ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ŎƘŀǊƎŜǎέύ ŀƴŘ non-
recurrent operating expenses (rates funded and grant funded), overall, there is a 0.5% ($19,000) 
decrease in recurrent expenses despite increases in some expense items as listed below.  



 

  

The most significant increases in recurrent materials and services in the 2021ς22 financial year include: 

¶ $72,000, Foreshore and open space maintenance, due to additional vegetation management 
requirements; 

¶ $37,000, Cleaning of council buildings, amenities and BBQ's, mainly due to the incremental 
cleaning cost of the new Queenscliffe Hub facility; 

¶ $34,000, Utilities, expected increase in usage (staff returning to the office) and incremental 
utility cost of the new Queenscliffe Hub facility ($16,000); 

¶ $27,000, Insurance, estimated increase (11%) in insurance premium due to claim experience 
across the insurance market; 

¶ $23,000, Valuation services, mainly due to the cost associated with triennial property valuation 
(for asset management and financial reporting purposes) exercise; 

¶ $21,000, Information technology software and maintenance agreements, the incremental cost 
associated with the new corporate system (implementation to begin during the 3rd quarter of 
the 2021ς22 financial year). 

Non-recurrent operating projects (rates funded) in the 2021ς22 budget include: 

¶ $196,000, marine and costal managmet plan (carry forward from 2020ς21 budget); 

¶ $100,000, review of the Queenscliffe Planning Scheme, urban and heritage character controls 
(carry forward from 2020ς21 budget);  

¶ $80,0000, short term actions to be implemented based on the Climate Emergency Response 
Plan (CERP); 

o $40,000, development of an active transport strategy for the Borough; 

o $30,000, CERP implementation plan; and 

o $10,000, development of a reconciliation plan (first nation people). 

¶ $50,000, development of a new 10-year asset management plan in line with the requirements 
stipulated in the new Local Government Act 2020; 

¶ $20,000, to conduct a traffic study in Queenscliff; 

¶ $20,000, development of a vegetation management plan for the Borough; and  

¶ $15,000, review of Local Law program area. 

4.1.9 Bad and doubtful debts 

Description 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
Budget 

2021ς22 
Change 

$'000 $'000 $'000 % 

Infringements debtors 3 3 0 0% 

Total bad and doubtful debts 3 3 0 0% 

 

A provision of $3,000 p.a. for bad and doubtful debts is ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜŘ ƛƴ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ōǳŘƎŜǘΣ largely relating 
to parking fines.  



 

  

4.1.10 Depreciation 

Description 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
Budget 

2021ς22 
Change 

$'000 $'000 $'000 % 

Property 378 462 84 22% 

Plant and equipment 155 134 (21) (13%) 

Infrastructure 793 776 (17) (2%) 

Total depreciation 1,326 1,373 47 4% 

 

Depreciation is an accounting measure which attempts to allocate the value of an asset over its useful 
ƭƛŦŜ ŦƻǊ /ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ ǇǊƻǇŜǊǘȅ (buildings), plant and equipment, and infrastructure assets (such as roads 
and drains).  

The increase in depreciation expenses mainly reflects the additional depreciation expenses associated 
with the new Queenscliffe Hub facility expected to be completed during the 2021ς22 financial year. 

4.1.11 Borrowing costs 

Council does not have any outstanding loans and no new loans are included in the 2021ς22 budget. 

4.1.12 Other expenses 

Description 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
Budget 

2021ς22 
Change 

$'000 $'000 $'000 % 

Councillors' allowances 151 154 3 2% 

Auditors' remuneration - VAGO 43 45 2 5% 

Auditors' remuneration - Internal 15 16 1 7% 

Audit fees - other 6 6 (0) (1%) 

Operating lease rentals 20 21 1 5% 

Non-recurrent operating projects (grant funded) 59 0 (59) (100%) 

COVID-19 hardship - business support 23 0 (23) (100%) 

Other 12 13 1 4% 

Asset write-offs 0 0 0 0% 

Cost of volunteers 70 70 (0) (0%) 

Total other expenses 399 325 (75) (19%) 

 

Other expenses relate to a range of unclassified items including Mayoral and Councillor allowances, 
internal and external audit fees, photocopier lease expense, asset write-offs and other miscellaneous 
expenditure. 

The reduction of $75,000 (19%) compared with the 2020ς21 financial year is predominantly due to 
non-recurrent (grant funded) projects and cost associated with providing additional COVID-19 support 
to businesses.  

The cost of the expenditure which may otherwise have been paid by Council in the absence of any 
contribution from volunteers is estimated be $70,000 for 2021ς22 ($70,000 in 2020ς21). 



 

  

4.1.13 Net asset revaluation increment 

The revaluation of land and building assets is scheduled to be completed in 2021ς22. The outcome of 
this revaluation is not able to be predicted for inclusion in the 2021ς22 Budget.  

4.2 Balance Sheet 

4.2.1 Assets 

Description 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
 Budget 

 2021ς22 
Change 

$'000 $'000 $'000 % 

Cash and cash equivalents 8,913 6,210 (2,703) (30%) 

Trade and other receivables 330 330 0 0% 

Other financial assets 1,000 1,000 0 0% 

Inventories 4 4 0 0% 

Other assets 225 225 0 0% 

Total current assets 10,472 7,769 (2,703) (26%) 

Investment in an associate 240 240 0 0% 

Property, infrastructure, plant and 
equipment 

138,077 141,830 3,753 3% 

Total non-current assets 138,317 142,070 3,753 3% 

Total assets 148,789 149,839 1,050 1% 

 

Current assets are those assets which are able to be converted to cash within twelve months. These 
assets are forecast to decrease by $2,703,000 (26%) compared with the 2020ς21 financial year, as cash 
is used to pay for projects carried forward from 2020ς21 when they are progressed or completed. 

No movement in other financial assets, trade and other receivables, inventories and other assets 
(prepaid expenses and accrued income) is budgeted for 2021ς22. Variances to this assumption are 
adjusted in the forecast when known. 

Non-current assets are those assets which are not expected to be converted to cash within twelve 
months. Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment is the largest component. These assets are 
forecast to increase by $3,753,000 (3%) compared with the 2020ς21 financial year, as capital works 
are progressed or completed during the 2021ς22 financial year. 

Council recognises its interest in the Geelong Regional Library Corporation by recording an investment 
ƛƴ ƛǘǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ŀǘ ŀ ǾŀƭǳŜ ōŀǎŜŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ .ƻǊƻǳƎƘΩǎ ǳƴŘŜǊƭȅƛƴƎ ƛƴǘŜǊŜǎǘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƴŜǘ ŀǎǎŜǘǎ ƻŦ 
the service disclosed in its audited financial staǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ŜŀŎƘ ȅŜŀǊΦ ¢ƘŜ .ƻǊƻǳƎƘΩǎ ǎƘŀǊŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ƴŜǘ 
assets is calculated on the same ratio as it contributes to the operating costs of the service. Both the 
2020ς21 Forecast and 2021ς22 Budget assume no movement in library equity, with adjustments in 
equity advised by the Geelong Regional Library Corporation to be reported at year-end and 2021ς22 
forecast adjusted accordingly. Annual contributions to Geelong Regional Library Corporation are 
included as expenditure in the Income Statement. 



 

  

4.2.2 Liabilities 

Description 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
 Budget 

 2021ς22 
Change 

$'000 $'000 $'000 % 

Trade and other payables 1,373 1,121 (251) (18%) 

Trust funds and deposits 16 16 0 0% 

Provisions 952 976 24 2% 

Other liabilities 80 80 0 0% 

Total current liabilities 2,421 2,194 (227) (9%) 

Provisions 106 109 3 2% 

Total non-current liabilities 106 109 3 2% 

Total liabilities 2,527 2,303 (225) (9%) 

Current liabilities are those obligations Council must pay within the next twelve months. These 
liabilities are forecast to decrease by $225,000 (9%) compared with the 2020ς21 financial year, largely 
due to more capital expenditure projected for the 2020ς21 financial year compared to the 2021ς22 
financial year leading to an expected increase in the value of creditor invoices due at 30 June 2021. 

Provisions (employee cost provisions for accrued long service leave, annual leave, rostered days off 
and time-in-lieu owing to employees) are budgeted to increase by $27,000 ($24,000 current and 
$3,000 non-current), in accordance with the Enterprise Bargaining Agreement and increase in super 
guarantee with effect form 1 June 2021. Active management of leave balances may result in some 
forecast savings during the year, and this will be adjusted in 2021ς22 should a positive outcome be 
achieved. 

No movement in trust funds and deposits (e.g. tender deposits and bonds paid to Council for future 
hall hire) and other liabilities (income received in advance for tourist park seasonal package fees and 
accrued expenses) is budgeted for 2021ς22. Variances to this assumption are adjusted in the forecast 
when known. 

Non-current liabilities are those obligations Council is not expected to pay within the next twelve 
months.  

4.2.3 Borrowings 

Council continues to focus on efficient and financially responsible service delivery to achieve outcomes 
that are valued by our community. Council will continue to explore new approaches to provide services 
in a tighter fiscal environment. 

Council currently has a debit-free balance sheet and no new borrowing included in the 2021ς22 
budget. 

4.2.4 Leases by category 

Council has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of 
machinery that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets (individual assets 
worth less than exisiting capitalisation thresholds for a like asset up to a maximum of AUD$10,000), 
including IT equipment. 
 
Council recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term. 



 

  

4.3 Statement of Changes in Equity 

4.3.1 Equity 

Description 

Forecast 
Actual 

2020ς21 

Draft 
 Budget 

 2021ς22 
Change 

$'000 $'000 $'000 % 

Accumulated surplus 95,128 98,579 3,451 4% 

Asset revaluation reserves 43,498 43,498 0 0% 

Discretionary reserves 7,637 5,459 (2,177) (29%) 

Total equity 146,262 147,536 1,274 1% 

 

Total equity always equals net assets and is made up of the following components: 

¶ Accumulated surplus, which is the value of all net assets less reserves that have accumulated 
over time;  

¶ Asset revaluation reserves, which represent the difference between the previously recorded 
value of non-current assets (property, infrastructure, plant and equipment) and their current 
valuations; and 

¶ Other reserves, which are funds Council wishes to separately identify as being set aside to meet 
a specific purpose in the future and for which there is no existing liability. These amounts are 
transferred from the Accumulated Surplus of the Council and separately disclosed. 

A $1,274,000 of the $3,451,000 (4%) increase in accumulated surplus, results directly from the 
projected surplus for the year. The balance of $2,177,000 is budgeted to be transferred from other 
reserves to accumulated surplus. This reflects the usage of cash to partly fund the 2021-21 capital and 
operating works program as explained in the note 4.3.2. This is a transfer between equity balances 
only and does not impact on the total balance of equity. 

No change is included in the 2021ς22 Budget with respect to the asset revaluation reserve. While 
/ƻǳƴŎƛƭΩǎ land and building assets are scheduled to be revalued in 2021ς22, the outcome of this 
revaluation will not be known until June 2022. 

  


























